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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

REGISTERED OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

25th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Secretaries Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
35th Floor, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited, HK Branch

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
Final Dividend
— Latest Time to Lodge Transfers

23 March 2023
HKO.62 cent per share
31 May 2023

(before 4:30 p.m.

1 and 2 June 2023
(both days inclusive)

N

— Book Close Dates

— Record Date 2 June 2023
— Payment Date 16 June 2023
2023 Annual General Meeting 25 May 2023
— Last Time to Lodge Transfers 19 May 2023

(before 4:30 p.m.)
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This annual report (in both English and Chinese
versions) is available to any shareholder of the Company
(“Shareholders”) either in printed form or on the websites
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company.
In order to protect the environment, the Company highly
recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy
of this annual report. Shareholders may have the right
to change their choice of receipt of our future Corporate
Communications at any time by reasonable notice in writing
to the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
by post or by email at is-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
MR

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of REBRKBEBRAR ((KARFA)) Z2EEG (£
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) presents ZEIHEF) REAADREWBAE R
the audited consolidated results of the Company and its [A&EE])) BE2022F12831HIEFE (TR4%F
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the [El) ZREBIZiREEG-

year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

For the year ended
31 December

#ZE12831HLLEE
HK$ MILLION 2021 2022
&%
Revenue 3,927 3,684
YA
Gross profit 1,230 1,177
- £ 7
Gross profit margin 31.3% 31.9%
EFFE
% Adjusted EBITD* 365 376
KB EEBITD*
.,
Net profit 205 222
HEFE
Basic earnings per share HKB8.02 cents HKS3.28 cents
SREXEF AL Al
Final dividend per share HKO0.35 cent HKO0.62 cent
BREABARS =Xl AL

Adjusted EBITD represents earnings before interest, tax and depreciation * #RKFEEEBITDAFE RMEMEBREESERENITEER

charge on the self-owned flagship store, which reflects the Group’s core B URMEAERZZOEERR AEBEE2@E
operating performance. The Group has fully adopted the HKFRS16, which RMEBHBREENE165 EEELAAESOERN
amortisation of right-of-use assets associated with rental lease agreements BRAEEERH-

were included.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

RESULTS

During the Year, the pandemic continued posing an
unstable business operating environment for the Group,
and the Group’s total revenue was HK$3,684.3 million
(2021: HK$3,926.6 million). Revenues from Hong Kong and
mainland China were HK$1,652.5 million (2021: HK$1,739.3
million) and HK$1,186.3 million (2021: HK$1,227.8 million),
respectively, accounting for 44.9% (2021: 44.3%) and 32.2%
(2021: 31.3%) of the total revenue, respectively. In terms
of revenue by product segment, the sales revenues from
the watch and jewellery segments were HK$3,017.6 million
(2021: HK$3,268.9 million) and HK$666.7 million (2021:
HK$657.7 million), respectively, accounting for 81.9% (2021:
83.3%) and 18.1% (2021: 16.7%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

Gross profit was HK$1,177.3 million (2021: HK$1,229.5
million), while the gross profit margin increased slightly to
31.9% (2021: 31.3%). Attributable to the increase in gross
profit margin and its effective cost saving measures, the
Group’s net profit increased mildly to HK$222.1 million (2021:
HK$204.7 million) during the Year. Basic earnings per share
was HK3.28 cents (2021: HK3.02 cents). The Group has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.62
cent (2021: HK0.35 cent) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK0.38 cent (2021: HKO0.55 cent) per share, the
total dividends for the Year are HK1.0 cent (2021: HKO0.9
cent) per share.

B i 3 57

REAEE BREEEHAEEER T EENERS
EEIRIE  NEBE AR A %3,684,300,0007% 7T
(20214 : 3,926,600,00058 7t) ° KRB E B K EH
A AU A 9 Bl 2 1,652,500,00058 7 ( 20214 -
1,739,300,00038 75) K& 1,186,300,0005% 7T (2021
£F 1 1,227,800,0007%7T) > ARG 4E U A B944.9%
(20214 : 44.3%) %32.2% (20214 : 31.3%) °
RERODBIDHNRAMES  EERKED TN
HEW A DB A3,017,600,0008 7T (20214 :
3,268,900,000% 7T) &666,700,0007 75 (2021
£ 657,700,000/ 7T) > D AME4EUL A BY81.9%
(20214F : 83.3%) %18.1% (20214 : 16.7%) ©

E7%41,177,300,00078 7T (20214 : 1,229,500,000
BIT) 0 MEFEEHMIEMEST.9% (20214F
31.3%) cHREFEIE I REB B K KE
NIEW > AEBRAFEEN A EEMEME
222,100,000 75 (20214 : 204,700,000 75) ©
BREAREBNA3.288 1l (20214 : 3.0281l) °
AEEEZFIRNT AR ESK0.62781l (2021
F:0.3581l) - ERF KR ES0.3881
(20214 1 0.5581l) "AFERELEAER
1,051 (20214 : 0.9%1) °

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 2 EiE X Bk EH R AT

Annual Report 2022 £ #§




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

& PR o B or

MARKET REVIEW

The pandemic situation has broadly stabilised around the
world, while business travel and leisure activities have
resumed. The local labour market has shown signs of
improvement, although the development of the macro
economy was still hindered by geo-political tensions and
interest hikes.

In Hong Kong, there has been phased easing of inbound
quarantine and social distancing measures during the Year,
and the total number of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong in 2022
increased by 562% year-on-year, to approximately 600,000.
Shoppers’ traffic has picked-up, and luxury consumption
regained momentum since the second half of the Year.

In mainland China, the release of pent-up demand and
accumulated savings has provided a solid basis for actual
spending by consumers. Nevertheless, mainland China
was hit hard by the resurgence of the pandemic in the last
quarter of the Year, which somewhat affected the recovery of
consumption sentiment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading retailer of European-made
internationally renowned watches, together with fine jewellery
products under its own brand, “Emperor Jewellery”’. The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since July 2008.

The Group has established a retail network across Hong
Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore and Malaysia, as
well as several online shopping platforms. With a history of
80 years, the Group carries a balanced and comprehensive
watch dealership list. The target customers range from
middle to high income groups worldwide. The Group’s core
strategy focuses on maintaining its position as the leading
watch and jewellery retailing group in Greater China, coupled
with an eye on expansion beyond the region.

Presence in Prime Retail Locations

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 93 stores
in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China, Singapore and
Malaysia. The distribution was as follows:

B i 3 57

E 5O EE
AEETERHETERRZBONREBEKRET
EEHRE mBzesMGEEH RTEBHZ
B - ARBN2008F7TEEEEMEXZME
RABER L

AERBZTERE BREE VGRPIPEAM
MR ERED  FREBER LEDTE -
AEBEFOH ZFEL > NIRRT 2 &Yk
mig - BEREZEEABREXZIMHNPTESTHA
AL - AERNZORBESRFERKPESE
ERBEBERRGKETEEEM FREER
RAPFELIME DIERER -

EERSTEMEK

R2022F 12831 B REBEREE B FH
A FINIR R Bk A & o3 E & > &
DU -

Number of stores
B8

Hong Kong 5% 29
Macau P 5
Mainland China R 3 P 50
Singapore 03 8
Malaysia B2RF D 1
Total 4E gL 93

These stores include self-branded “Emperor Jewellery’
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has built a strategic sales network
in prime shopping areas as well as popular residential
districts, particularly in Hong Kong and mainland China.
Within mainland China, approximately 75% of its stores are
located in first tier and new first tier cities, which fits the
Group’s customer targeting and market positioning. The
Group also successfully expanded its presence in Singapore
and Malaysia, to enhance its footprint and brand exposure
beyond Greater China.

ZEEHOEE AR (EEKE 5 EREE
[ER % g g s (RN RGKEER) o

ZERAEBERBEBURTEAMNESE
VB RZEDZ FE@EIIARKENHEER
A& o BOFRE P > 4975 %RY 5 &R LIS — 4R Ko R —
BT SEAEENTRERRTHEM &
BT A FRBREEERM MBI ERED LB
REFTRPEME DI BRI R mARIRIEEK -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

& PR o B or

During the Year, the Group opened three jewellery stores in
Hong Kong, as well as four jewellery stores and one Rolex
store in mainland China. The Group also established a stores
rollout plan for 2023, focusing on the residential areas of
Hong Kong and prominent cities of mainland China.

Solidifying Leading Position in the Watch Industry

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner
of and maintains solid relationships with major high end
luxury Swiss watch brand suppliers, thereby continuing to
hold a comprehensive portfolio of watch dealerships and
maintaining its leading position, especially in Hong Kong.
The Group actively participates in co-marketing campaigns
and events with brands, highlighting new products and
connecting the customers in a personalised way.

Enhancing the Jewellery Business

The Group offers premium quality “Emperor Jewellery’
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship. The spectacular “Emperor Jewellery’
features a variety of precious gem stones with a key focus on
diamonds and jadeites. “Emperor Jewellery’ unveils unique
collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers.

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2 ESH % EHR AT

Annual Report 2022 £ $§

REFE AEBREBERAR
PREPERMER T HEBREE &k —E% LS
AEBTERE2023FEFHFRE ETES
AETERTEAMB TR -

—EHREE I

BE MR ERITEMEE M

BEHBARL  xEERTESRRERLE
FmEHEREENGERMH LRZFHER
MRRENREG EMEBESZEES ZE&
RER THFHEEMA  LHEEB - A&H
BBSMEEAmEEMzHHEELS 5
EEMERITEBREREIEACHE-

IR ERE 55

FEEBRFUEFRFIRIZ SETRMEER
EEHE Em-SREENEEHKET 77
EMZRELEEL EPUEORBREAR/E-
TEEHE WHZHERIORFEE B —
= mETEBRERRE-

m_oEHA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

During the Year, the Group launched several new
contemporary collections. These include Flare, which
is meticulously crafted with a setting technique in which
the diamond is framed within a 18K white gold crown,
highlighting the sparkling diamond. Love Adventure features
a lock and a matching key, symbolising couples who open
up their hearts, complementing and completing each other.
Both collections are designed for daily-wear, to suit women
favouring different styles.

To strengthen engagements with local customers, the Group
launched a number of jewellery promotional events during the
Year.

Strengthening the E-commerce Business

With the growing popularity of the internet, the Group has
established a jewellery presence on several online shopping
platforms - including HKTV Mall, Zalora, Tmall, jd.com -
in order to expand its revenue source and enhance brand
visibility. To formulate an effective product strategy, the
Group analysed the database and internet behaviour of the
users.

During the Year, the Group expanded its online shopping
platforms from solely featuring jewellery to also including
watches. In collaboration with Tudor, the Group has launched
a Tudor online sales platform, which helped promote the
brand as well as drive Tudor’s sales. The Group will continue
enhancing the Tudor online sales platform, in order to
enhance the online shopping experience and drive website
traffic. The Group will also continue identifying opportunities
for collaboration with other watch brands.

B iR B T

RAEFE  AEBEHBEZHEHRS] EF
BEEZALY RAFENNEEAERTE R
BALISKAEBIL A MIE  USRREPI R BT
HMEREU—IBENBENRR REE2E[
MR OB BAER L 75 c MIE R ES R
Rt 2 M fEE BECIE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

& PR o B or

PROSPECTS

Subsequent to the Year, the borders between Hong Kong,
Macau and mainland China have been fully reopened, and
the inbound quarantine measures for all travellers have been
lifted. The number of Hong Kong’s visitor arrivals is expected
to increase, which will accelerate the revival of tourism and
the retail industry. In addition, a stabilising property market
and a less volatile stock market will provide incentives for
luxury consumption. All these factors will serve as a positive
influence on the Group’s business.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue with prudent
expansion of its network, and is expected to open jewellery
stores in Tai Wai and Kwun Tong, Hong Kong, as well as
Chengdu and Hebei, mainland China in 2023.
continue monitoring the market landscape and developments
in various regions, and observe customer preferences and
spending patterns, in order to devise appropriate business
strategies.

It will also

Despite the resumption of consumers’ physical visits to
stores, the importance of online shopping platforms will
remain, as consumer behaviour has changed throughout the
pandemic cycle. The Group will step up efforts in this regard,
to further enhance its brand image and capture online market
opportunities. With the industry gradually recovering from
the pandemic, the Group will adopt a prudent approach,
and continue exercising stringent control over operating
costs, aiming to enhance operating efficiency and improve
profitability.

10 Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2 ESH % EHR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2022 increased to HK$664.4 million (2021:
HK$556.3 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group did not have any bank borrowings (2021: HK$165.5
million) and was in a net cash position, hence its net gearing
ratio (calculated on the basis of bank borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents over net asset value) was zero (2021:
zero). The Group also had available un-utilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$942.6 million.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$3,505.9 million
(2021: HK$3,435.6 million) and HK$433.5 million (2021:
HK$535.4 million), respectively. Current ratio and quick
ratio of the Group were 8.1 (2021: 6.4) and 1.9 (2021: 1.4),
respectively.

In view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2022, the Directors considered that the Group had sufficient
working capital for its operations and future development plans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 638 salespersons
(2021: 678) and 201 office staff (2021: 179). Total staff
costs (including Directors’ remuneration) were HK$262.9
million (2021: HK$288.5 million) for the Year. Employees’
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual’s
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and
other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set
out in the section headed “Share Options” of the Directors’
Report.

B iR B T

H1 %5 Bl B8
HXEE RBESRMBER

R2022F 12831 KEBZRITHER AT
EIR S INEE64,400,0008 7T (20214
556,300,000787T) » TEUEB TR ARKEFE
R2022F12A31 B AEBREEMIERITEE
(20214 : 165,500,000 7T) * WERF RS
ToREFAEGELEE (URTEERERE MR
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HEH RO ARAT BN B 2 JE

CINDY YEUNG #Zaa

CINDY YEUNG, aged 58, an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chairperson of the Board as well as the
Chairperson of the Executive Committee of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
joined the Group in September 1990 and became a director
of Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an
operating arm of the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong,
in April 1999. Ms. Yeung has over 30 years of experience
in watch and jewellery industry. She has obtained the
qualification of the Graduate Gemologist of Gemological
Institute of America (GIA) and subsequently graduated from
University of San Francisco with a Bachelor’s Degree of
Science in Business Administration majoring in Management,
with emphasis on International Business.

Ms. Yeung is an executive committee member of Hong
Kong Federation of Guangzhou Associations Limited and
honorary president of the 1st Executive Committee of Hong
Kong Federation of Guangzhou Women Association Limited.
She is also a member of the Supervisory Committee of The
Hong Kong Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association Limited
and council member of The Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’
Association of Hong Kong Limited.

12 Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2 ESH % EHR AT
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

B R ERITN B2 JE

NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY %.pf5

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITESRITHAER

NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY, aged 54, an Executive Director
of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, as well as a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group since July 2021. Mr. Ng is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development and overseeing different business
operations within the Group. He possesses over 25 years
of extensive corporate management experience in retail,
product planning, operations, marketing and business
development. Mr. Ng was an executive director and chief
executive officer of Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code:
1711) (“Ulferts”), a listed member of Emperor Group, from 1
May 2014 to 30 June 2021. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration awarded by Hong Kong Baptist College (now
Hong Kong Baptist University). Mr. Ng also holds a Degree
of Master of Management in Marketing Management and a
Degree of Master of Business Administration awarded by
Macquarie University, Sydney, Australia.

REM 54 ARRRAZHITEEREAEE
TR URAATRITEEEREREAF
HTHEAR ZESF - BR2021F7AMBRE
EoRAEaEARER/MREAS £HEBRA
EREROUTEBAEESREXEEE - KAFE25
FHNZE - ERKE EE MBEEREBERE
HNESLXBIELR RALER2014F581HE
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HEH R ARAIT BN B 2 JE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAI, aged 67, an Executive Director of the
Company. He has been involved in the management of the
Group since November 1998. Mr. Wong is a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He has over 30 years of finance and
management experience in different businesses ranging from
retailing of watch and jewellery, property investment and
development, hotel and hospitality, financial and securities
services, wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, artiste management as well as media and
publication. Mr. Wong is currently a director of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor
International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock
Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor Capital Group
Limited (Stock Code: 717) (“Emperor Capital Group”),
Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor
Culture”) and Ulferts, all being listed members of Emperor
Group. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man
Seung), aged 60, an Executive Director of the Company.
She has been involved in the management of the Group
since November 1998. Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. She has over 34 years of corporate management
experience in diversified businesses ranging from retailing of
watch and jewellery, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, cinema development
and operation to entertainment production and investment,
artiste management as well as media and publication. Ms.
Fan is currently a director of Emperor International, Emperor
E Hotel, Emperor Capital Group, Emperor Culture and Ulferts.
She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified
accountant, and holds a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 60, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and
the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. Ms.
Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years of experience
as independent non-executive director of various listed
companies. She is currently an independent non-executive
director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 997) and Emperor Culture. Ms. Chan graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 59, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2017. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing
and corporate finance. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2000). Mr. Liu holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 58, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2017. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan
previously worked in two international accounting firms,
Touche Ross & Co. and Ernst & Young and engaged in
accounting, auditing and information security fields for 20
years. She graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University majoring in accountancy and obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Heriot-Watt
University in Scotland. Ms. Chan is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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ACHIEVEMENTS
IRIR

Hong Kong Service Awards 2022

2022F B AR AL
Luxury Watch Retailer
S EEHRIT

East Week
HETF

The EDigest
Brand Award
2022

A — om R R 8%
2022

Economic Digest
@E—iB

The 8th Investor Relations Awards 2022 \(
2022F F/\EREEMEAE

Best Investor Relations Company (Small Cap) |
BREREERGEAR—/NEK e
Best Investor Relations Material (Small Cap)

REREERGREM—/NER

Hong Kong Investor Relations Association

EEREERGRDE

2022 Quality Service Retailer of the Year of
Chain Stores — Bronze Award
2022 R EBERBEER —EH/E HiE

Hong Kong Retail Management Association

EETEEEHE

==
Elite Brand Award 2022
Elite Enterprise Awards 2022
82 B PR IR B K 122022

82 T 5= iH b 2 K122022

Oriental Daily News

RE AR
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 72.

An interim dividend of HKO0.38 cent (2021: HKO0.55 cent)
per share for the Year amounting to approximately HK$25.8
million was paid to the Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.62 cent per share for the Year (2021: HKO0.35 cent
per share) to those Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members on 2 June 2023 (Friday), subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 25 May 2023 (Thursday)
(2023 AGM").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 5 to 11 of this report. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 54 to
59 of this report and note 28B to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this
report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s
key stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have significant impact on the
Company are set out in the 2022 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREWRE

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 75.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 December 2022, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$1,277,112,000 (2021: HK$1,175,756,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 180
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 2.6% (2021:
2.4%) of the total turnover of the Group. The Group’s five
largest suppliers contributed to approximately 93.2% (2021:
96.3%) of the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the above major customers and
suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 12 to 15
of this report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Articles 80(1) and 80(3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Ms. Cindy Yeung, Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne shall retire by rotation at
the 2023 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election
at the 2023 AGM has an unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’s Articles of
Association and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may
be brought against the Directors and the directors of the
Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERERTHRAEZESTEn
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions 2022F12831H > EBRAREZE&ETEHA
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the EBRARAKREEHLIE (EERESRPEK
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company il (T5E 5 KEBEEA) FEXVELD) Z K7~ HEIR
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part W KkE#EFEFEB A LQEREFE ST RIAERGIE
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as 352 BEFEFzEafMAaiizEmkXa
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant HRIBEALRBEIRMZEFETH ST H I REST
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the ) (TR Z2#EHRIkBZSFFH) BRITNIARE]
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model MEBRFIZ#ERZEXEBUWT .

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the

Company (“EWJ Securities Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company (a) MEAFRZEEEE
Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) KRG ZZER (THR171)

Number of % of issued

Shares interested voting Shares

Name of Director = Capacity/Nature of interests FEERZ HEeET

EEN4Y B EENE R B BEREERN%

Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of 4,298,630,000 63.41
BHEBL L a private discretionary trust

ARBEEZEEBRZTmA

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group Kz HWEROIDHESEFREEBITIRERL
Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”), a wholly-owned B (REEFKKREZER) FHE EABIM
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery Holdings Limited BHREKEZEREARAR (B MIEBRHEEE
(“AY W&J Holdings”). AY W&J Holdings was in turn held by First ) Z2EMBAT A ERTEER
Family Advisors Trust reg. (“First Family”) in trust for a private BHBZME LT (MB1E 1)) R KIFirst Family
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Advisors Trust reg. (TFirst Family 1) L FA A B
Yeung”) under which Ms. Cindy Yeung had deemed interest by BlEEERAFE MEAZGTAERSE A
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the trust. AZ—HBHEB LT WRE AN L5 %

B o
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(b) Long position interests in associated (b) MREABEBEIEZFEEE
corporations of the Company
(i)  Ordinary shares (i) ZBER
Number of % of issued
Capacity/Nature of  shares interested voting shares
Name of Directors  Name of associated corporations interests KEERZ eI
EEf4h RECEE ST &/ BatE Kin&E BREERRD%
Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary 2,747,611,223 74.71
E T HEER of a private (Note)
discretionary trust W)
MANBERETZ
SERTEA
Emperor E Hotel —ditto— 851,353,645 71.68
HERGRE -FL- (Notg)
Hrzt)
Emperor Culture —ditto— 2,371,313,094 73.80
HEVEEE -FE- (Note)
Wiz
Ulferts —ditto— 600,000,000 75.00
Bt —[LE- (Note)
Wiz
Ms. Fan Man Seung,  Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29
Vanessa HEFE BHEEA
THELL
Note:  Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Culture Wa . HEBER BEREHEE HEXL
and Ulferts are companies with their shares listed on the EEXRBLAROIPBXMETZ
Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately owned RE ZERMIHSENMAR
by the respective private discretionary trusts. Ms. Cindy BEARKER HBHBRLIAZ
Yeung had deemed interests in the same shares by virtue L EAEERZTRAZ — WERK
of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such trusts. WARERRKRGN PR R -
(i) Debentures (i) 1ERE
Amount of
Name of Director Name of associated corporation  Capacity/Nature of interests debentures held
BEEfL L ATbY B/ RME FifsEES s
Mr. Wong Chi Fai Emperor International Interest of a controlled corporation HK$2,000,000
=hoy i HEFR REEG B2 #5E 2,000,0007% 70
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EREWRE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements. No option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

Name

g 5

Capacity/Nature of interests

g EmEitE

Beneficial owner

BEm#EAA

Emperor W&J Holdings
HEEHRKEER

AY W&J Holdings

B A ERIREIER RREGEEZ #m

First Family Trustee of a private discretionary
trust
MWARBEFLEZZEA
Dr. Yeung Founder of a private discretionary
BiE T trust
MWARIBEFLEZRITZA

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon
e e+

Interest of spouse
EoiBm

Brandes Investment
Partners, L.P.

Investment manager
BEKE

Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung had

deemed interest as set out under Section (a) of “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware
of any person or corporation (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

Interest in a controlled corporation
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RAIWEFREECHRN RIS S R PBEREG S
336K EBEFHEEZERM (EEELM) RZ#E

e
mARE

RERBZEFE

Number of
Shares
interested
FEiERZZ
GedhE 4=

% of issued
voting Shares
HE#ET
EREERHBY%
4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note)
(K1 52)

4,298,630,000 63.41
(Note)

(Ht52)

4,298,630,000
(Note)
(H15)

63.41

4,298,630,000
(Note)
(H152)

63.41

4,298,630,000
(Note)
(H1zE)

63.41

339,017,288 5.00
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company and certain Director(s) had material interests,
directly or indirectly, in such transactions:

1. Master Leasing Agreements (“MLA(s)”)

Date: 3 December 2020

Parties: (1) EIHL Agreement: the Company and
Emperor International

(2) EEH Agreement: the Company and
Emperor E Hotel

Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel and
their subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as “Emperor International Group”.

Term: From 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2024

Each of MLA sets out the framework of
the terms governing all existing and future
tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing of certain
properties (including offices and retail shops)
from Emperor International Group with
aggregate tenancy annual caps for each of
the 9 months ended 31 December 2021, the
financial years ended/ending 31 December
2022 and 2023 and the 3 months ending 31
March 2024.

Nature:
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Connected
Relationship
and Director’s
Interests:

Announcements:

Gircular:

Independent
Shareholders’
approval:

Aggregate
Amounts:

Pursuant to the MLAs, relevant members
of the Group and the relevant members
of Emperor International Group may from
time to time enter into any definitive
leasing agreements in relation to any
Tenancy Transaction (“Definitive Leasing
Agreement(s)”). The terms of each Definitive
Leasing Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which are
no less favourable to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties. The
terms and rental shall be subject to arm’s
length negotiation and determined based
on the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market rents
on property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

As Emperor International and Emperor E
Hotel were both indirectly controlled by a
private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung
who is the deemed substantial Shareholder
of the Company, Emperor International and
Emperor E Hotel are connected persons
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a Director,
has deemed interest in the transactions by
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries
of the aforesaid trust controlling Emperor
International and Emperor E Hotel.

3 December 2020 and 2 February 2021

24 December 2020

2 February 2021

For the Year, the aggregate right-of-use
amount and rental expense amount paid in
respect of the Tenancy Transactions with
Emperor International Group (which did not
exceed the approved right-of-use annual
cap of HK$350,000,000 and rental expense
annual cap of HK$4,500,000 respectively for
the Year) were as follows:

Right-of-use - HK$106,862,000

Rental expense - HK$1,352,000
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Consignment Agreement

Date:

Parties:

Term:

Nature:

Connected
Relationship
and Director’s
Interests:

Announcement:
Consignment
Annual Cap for

the Year:

Consignment
for the Year:

15 November 2019
(1) The Company
(2)  Dr. Yeung

1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022

The Group may at its discretion make
consignment arrangements with Dr. Yeung
and his associates (“Yeung Family”) and sell
the consigned items at its retail shops at the
Directors may think fit and beneficial to the
Group.

As Dr. Yeung is the father of Ms. Cindy
Yeung, a Director, hence Dr. Yeung and
the Yeung Family members are connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

15 November 2019

HK$50,000,000

During the Year, jewellery, watch and
accessory items with an aggregate
consignment value of HK$15,235,000
consigned from the Yeung Family was
recorded. The Group had applied the same
purchasing and retail pricing policy and
mechanism to these items as those normally
adopted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group. No sale of such item
was made during the Year.
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On 1 December 2022, the Company entered into a new
consignment agreement for renewing the existing agreement
on similar terms and conditions except that each of the
annual caps was revised to HK$35,000,000. The new
consignment agreement is effective for the period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, the transactions
as shown in item (7) are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (“Disclosed CCTs”) and that the Company had
complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. All other transactions as shown in
the said note are connected transactions exempted from all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed CCTs

The Group’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
Disclosed CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the Disclosed CCTs
of the Group as set out from pages 24 to 27 of this Annual
Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the Auditor’s Letter had been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors on Disclosed CCTs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(“INEDs”) had reviewed the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s
Letter and confirmed that these transactions had been
entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(if) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract which was significant in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link of business strategy and a close alignment
with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance based remuneration. The
Director’s fees are paid fees in line with market practice. No
individual should determine his or her own remuneration.
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performances as well as market pay level.
Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad-hoc rewards,
share options and other competitive fringe benefits such as
medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the
Directors and the five highest paid individuals in the Group
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. A
resolution for its re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed thereat.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees
of the Company.

The Board of the Company has adopted various policies to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules so as to having effective application
of the principles of good corporate governance. During
the Year, the Company had fully complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate
culture, focusing on four pillars, namely customer centricity,
excellence in products and services, people first and
positivity, which is underpinned by its purpose and values
that enable employees at all levels of the Group to thrive
and meet their full potentials by acting in a lawful, ethical
and responsible manner that allows the Company to deliver
sustainable long-term performance and operate in a way that
benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for
employees’ conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they
are integrated throughout the Company’s operational
practices, workplace policies and practices and stakeholder
relationships:
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The management is responsible for setting the tone and
shaping the corporate culture of the Company, as well
as defining the purpose, values and strategic direction of
the Group, which are under review by the Board. Taking
into account the corporate culture is reflected in various
contexts, such as workforce engagement, employee retention
and training, legal and regulatory compliance, staff safety,
wellbeing and support, the culture, purpose, value and
strategy of the Group are aligned with one another.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of the success of
the Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing
and supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic
directions and monitoring the financial and management
performance of the Group.

Board Composition and Diversity

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, four are
Executive Directors and three are INEDs. Names and other
biographical details of the members of the Board are set out
on pages 12 to 15 of this report under the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Executives” section. All of them possess
the skills, experience and expertise either in the same
industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group.

To ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board, the following mechanisms were established:

° sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three,
representing more than one-third of the Board;

° no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

° separation of the role of the Chairperson and the
chief executive officer (“CEO”) ensures that there is a
balance of power and authority; and

° annual meeting between the Chairperson and all
INEDs without presence of other Directors provides
an effective platform for the Chairperson to listen to
independent views on various issues concerning the
Group.
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BEBIBWSE

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective.

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy
setting out the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
to the business nature of the Company. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. The merits and
contribution that will bring to the Board for any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated to
be Director will also be assessed, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of
educational background, professional knowledge, industry
experience and length of service. The diversity mix of the
Board as at 31 December 2022 is summarized as follows:

(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age
Distribution and Length of Service

Number of Directors

EE VN

7

Female

ok

Gender

14 3

Designation
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(i) Directors’ Skills and Experience

Areas of Experience

R EE

Related Industry Knowledge/Experience

MERATTER KR

Business Management
EE-$:

Legal/Regulatory
EREBE

Financial & Accounting

TR S5t

Strategic Planning & Risk Management
BRI S R e 1B

The Board’s gender diversity level is relatively high compared
to other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, with
four females directors out of seven (57%). During the Year,
the Nomination Committee recommended and the Board
approved a target of having no less than 25% female
directors on the Board. The Nomination Committee was
of the view that the current gender diversity of the Board
was appropriate and balanced, with four female directors,
representing over 50% of the Board and exceeding the
target set. Therefore, no timeline or plan was proposed for
further enhancing the gender diversity target of the Board
for the time being. The Nomination Committee will continue
reviewing the composition of the Board to maintain diversity.

The term of appointment of the INEDs are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules.
The INEDs had provided their confirmation of independence
to the Company. Based on the annual review conducted by
the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent with reference to the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Process

Besides regular Board meetings are held during the Year,
additional Board meetings, or meetings of a Board committee
established by the Board to consider specific matters, were
convened, when necessary.
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The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the AEFEEEFHETIIEHRZBFRUT @
Year is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held
LEeE BTEERY

Corporate
Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Governance General
Name of Directors Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting

EEf4 EFE UiT2RY BHREAEE HFMZEE RYZ8€ G£EERZAD RRAE

Executive Directors

RTESR

Ms. Cindy Yeung 5/5 (C) 6/6 (C) - - - - 1
BEBLT

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky 5/5 6/6 - - - - 11
AER%E

Mr. Wong Chi Fai 5/5 6/6 - 17 - - 1/1

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa 5/5 6/6 - - 2/2 2/2 (C) 11
THELL

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 5/5 - 3/3 - 2/2 (C) 2/2 11
RERLL

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 5/5 - 3/3(C) 11 - 2/2 11

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne 5/5 - 3/3 1/1 (C) 2/2 - 11
RERZT

Total number of meeting(s) held: 5 6 3 1 2 2 1
e AL

Note: Wit :
C: Chairperson/chairman of the Board/committee and meeting(s) C: By ZEGREETR

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs RARFER TRENTESLHENBER T R
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance #HEEEATFATAMEXHC2.TENRE  £F
with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code. BB UIFRITESRT T —REHE-

The Company has received confirmation from each director AABECEERZEZELZZHEIASZ XRTEREAFE
that he has given sufficient time and attention to the RANERARHFEERENNAATEHFL-FH
affairs of the Company during the Year. Directors have 7iEMRAAABWBERER AR EHMABEE
also disclosed to the Company the changes, if any, in the BFENHERMEEUNREMEBARKENESE (U
number and nature of offices they hold in public companies B) *BEARABHABN LB RETRHEET
or organizations and other significant commitment, including A& B PTY R AYEFR] ©

the identity of the public companies or organizations and an

indication of the time involved.
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Ms. Cindy Yeung acts as the Chairperson of the Board who
provides leadership to the Board. She sets the agenda for
the Board and ensures that members of the Board receive
accurate, timely and clear information, and that matters to
be taken into consideration are given their due weight, so
that sound decisions can be made. With the assistance of
the Company Secretary, the Chairperson ensures that the
Board properly exercises its powers, holds its meetings and
implements procedures in compliance with all rules and
requirements, and full and proper records are maintained.

The day-to-day management of the Group is delegated by
the Board to the CEO of the Group, Mr. Ricky Ng who is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development. The segregation of duties make the
Board and the operation of the Group function effectively.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director
will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution and
he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at such
Board meeting.

Procedures are also put in place for each Director to have
access to supporting papers and relevant information for
each scheduled meeting. All Directors also have access to
the services of the Company Secretary and her team, and
may take independent professional advice upon request, at
the Company’s expense.

Induction and Training for Directors

The Company provides Directors with regular updates on
changes to and developments of the Group’s business, and
on the latest developments in the laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to help them
make informed decisions and discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. Such materials
will also be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly
upon their appointment as Directors.
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During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous MRA&FEE > R%%ﬁE SHEFEEXRR BS
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/ HEBBEMU TEBZERXSE  TIEh BEM
reading materials on the following topics to develop and > LA%*E&%@ﬁéZ%Du&&&ﬁb’thﬁzti
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of ABIRMIFIIGEE R

training to the Company.

Name of Directors Topics of training covered
B4 HEZEINEE

Ms. Cindy Yeung (1) corporate governance
BBt TEEB

Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky (2) finance

SRR E BA 75

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (3) regulatory
Eﬁ/b\ﬁ%%é‘g %{sﬁ

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (4) industry-specific
BRIEZ L TR

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

PRIEIS &1

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

BEIELYE

Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

BRERZ L

BOARD COMMITTEES EEEE

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate #AWHEEERTEHERREENERE EF
effective management, certain functions of the Board have BETHAECHEFTZZRTHNITZEE BFIX
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, ZEG - HNEZEE - RLZEEATPEERE
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Eg- -FIEZFZLZES FWMEEmBELEDIR
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee. Clear HFILEZEFEEME

written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are

given to the respective members of these Committees.
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Executive Committee (set up on 22 October
2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky, Mr. Wong Chi
Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa. It has all powers
and authorities of the Board except the following major
matters as set out in a “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board™:

° determining the Group’s objectives and
strategies;
° approving annual and interim results and

financial reporting;

° declaring or recommending payment of
dividends or other distributions;

° approving major changes that require notification
by announcement under the Listing Rules;

° approving publication of announcements for
notifiable transactions (except for discloseable
transactions in relation to lease transactions
recognizing the right-of-use asset according to
HKFRS 16 “Leases”) under the Listing Rules;

° approving non-exempt connected transactions/
non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(other than those transactions took place from
time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders
(as the case may be)) under the Listing Rules;
and

° approving major capital restructuring and issue
of new securities of the Company.

Audit Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne.

1.

BEBEBWMS

WMITEEE (j220144E10522H £ 17)

HWITZEEHERINITESMER  Ho 5!
w/BEBUL (ZEELE)  RERE
F BSEAEEREHELLT -AITESR
SREREFGTZ UIRNRER E
MHEFEFRERAEFTEREZFE
ZERBESFERIAHZTINEESE
BRIN

. BEAER BRRRE ;

. MEFERTHRERURMBR

I:| 5

. FEikHEZEKYREHIEMDIK

. HOERE EHRABAN RS AE
HENZERES ;

. HOETIZE EHRAIETZATAM
RpzrE (EREEBMBERS
ZRE165E TG B ERAREE
ZERBEERXZZATRER SR

58 5

. HERE EHRAZIFREAER
5/ FRRFEMERS (REE
HEERE KRR (RBERME) #H#
ZRBBERIRETZRZRIN K&

HEARBZETEEREHRNE
FEITo

BREEY (12200865 19H £ 17)

BEREZETH-RBUIFATEFTAEM
HENhnBEERcE (EE5ELE) RE
BULKRREBR L L.

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 5 2 iE X Bk E R AT 37

Annual Report 2022 £ #§




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEEIRRE

38

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are set out in its terms of reference which include
duties specified in the CG Code and are posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

Vi.

reviewed with the management, finance
personnel and/or the external auditor the
effectiveness of audit process and the
accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group. When reviewing the accuracy and
fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 (“Pervious Year”) and the
interim consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2022 before
submission to the Board for consideration, the
Audit Committee has focused not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies
and practices, but also on the compliance with
applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and relevant legal requirements;

reviewed with the senior management and
finance personnel the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the Previous Year;

recommended to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor at the 2022
annual general meeting (2022 AGM”);

reviewed the audit fees and the fees for non-
audit services payable to the external auditor;

approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the external auditor and
approved its engagement;
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vii. reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting; and

viii. ~ reviewed and recommended to the Board on
the adoption of new anti-corruption policy
and procedures and the revised whistle-
blowing policy and reporting procedures for the
Company.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 June
2008)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Chairperson
of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, both being
INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an Executive
Director.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fees and made
recommendation to the Board; and

i reviewed the current remuneration structure/
package of the Executive Directors and senior
management and recommended the Board to
approve their specific packages.

Before recommendation to the Board, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and assessed the remuneration
package of the Directors with reference to the Group’s
operating results, duties and level of responsibility of the
Directors and the prevailing market conditions. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are
set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March
2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, lrene (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne, both being
INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being the
Executive Director.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are set out in its terms of reference which
include duties specified in the CG Code and are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for
formulating policy and making recommendations to the
Board on nomination, appointment and re-appointment
of Directors, and Board succession pursuant to the
Nomination Policy adopted by the Company.

The Nomination Policy of the Group which aims at
assisting the Nomination Committee in identifying
and nominating suitable candidates for directorship
based on the Board Diversity Policy and sets out the
nomination criteria and the nomination procedures for
(i) nominating new Director to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board; (ii) making recommendation to Shareholders
regarding any Director proposed for election or re-
election at general meeting; and (iii) nomination by
Shareholders on election of new Director.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential
candidates from any source as it may consider
appropriate and evaluate them by considering
various factors, including their professional expertise,
industry and business experience, time commitments,
potential contributions to board diversity, material
conflict of interest with the Group (if any) and
independence (for INEDs). The Committee will then
make recommendation for suitable candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment. In case of re-
appointment of existing Directors who will retire at an
annual general meeting (“AGM”), the Committee will
review the rotation and retirement of Directors and
make recommendations to the Board accordingly.

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2ES % EH R AT

Annual Report 2022 £ $§

B2EEE (502012435190 1)

RAHZEGH=-RMEAMN D BE
VR ITEERER LT (ZFEETE) A
MERYLIRATESEHE -

RLZEENTIEACRBECHNER
s E > HhaEdEE R TRIGTHE
ERRASECE YNNI E NI

RLZAREEHIBELREAAT
FANREHER RS BERENEE
E5 URESREHAOEETRME
o

FEBZRABREEBHRLEZEGR
BEFESTEHRYERELGENSE
EREA UBORRNEFLUARES
TR R ()M BERRERGERR
EESS MRREHEZ ; Ri)RERM
ERMEFZRWIARLRERERRE
Fo

RAEZEEINHHR B EENEAREY
BEEFREN TBEBEREZHERNEZHRSE
ETHE BRRENEEN# TER
EFBHERE BRARKB - HEFEZ TN
BEEMKAEENEANTER WAH)
URBIY GIBILIFATEEMS) ° &
EEHRENEF/RLAGBEREAZ
B UBERHZE -ARRRREBFRE
(TRERBFRE)) LRENFEEEFZ
B ZEEREREFNHRENRRE
WP ERBR L E




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board;

i reviewed the revised Board Diversity Policy,
Nomination Policy and terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee and made
recommendations to the Board for approval;

iii. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

iv. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors; and

V. made recommendation to the Board on the re-
election of Directors at the 2022 AGM.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on
19 March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CG
Committee”) consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee)
being an Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene and Mr. Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a
representative from company secretarial function and a
representative from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CG
Committee is available on the website of the Company.
The primary duties of the CG Committee are (a)
developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”)
and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of
the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and
relevant employees of the Group regarding dealings in
the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; and (e) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.
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A summary of the work performed by the CG
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(Y2 reviewed the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group
regarding securities transactions; and

V. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the Company Secretary, being an employee
of the Company, had duly complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the EWJ Securities Code as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors on no less exacting terms than the required
standards as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
regarding the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers. Having made specific enquiry
to Directors, all of them confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the EWJ
Securities Code throughout the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules. The management has provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates on internal consolidated financial
statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Board had adopted appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgment and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable and ensured the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on a “going
concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary) and showed a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the
Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval. The auditor of
the Company had made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal control
policies and procedures within the Group are updated
regularly with the primary objective of providing general
guidance and recommendations on a basic framework of
risk management and internal control systems (“Control
Systems”).
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Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or losses.

The key objectives of the Control Systems include:
o safeguarding assets;

° ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports;

° promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws; and

° promoting effectiveness and efficiency of
operations.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s
internal control measures and procedures covering all
material controls, including operational, financial and
compliance controls, material risks relating to ESG
and the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit, financial
reporting functions as well as those relating to the
Company’s ESG performance and reporting; and (ii)
risk management functions in the principal subsidiaries
of the Company for the Year.
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B. Internal Control B. RWIEREIE
(1) Governance Control (1) EBEKE

The control structure of the Control Systems is BEERANBEEEESINT

set out as follows:

The Board

responsible for the overall Control
Systems and reviewing their effectiveness;

oversee the Control Systems on an
ongoing basis with the assistance of Audit
Committee;

ensure maintenance of appropriate and
effective Control Systems;

define management structure with clear
lines of responsibility and limit of authority;
and

determine the nature and extent of
significant risks (including ESG risks) that
the Group is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the
Group’s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems
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with the management annually to ensure ERrG URGREERERENT
that the management has performed H\%EM HIFEZRAZE
its duty to maintain effective Control B -ZmBEAERS

Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
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and experience, training programmes and RERNEBREEZ2ER
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal BTER MK 55t
audit and financial reporting functions as REEZREM ;

well as those relating to ESG performance
and reporting;

review the nature and extent of significant
risks (including ESG risks), and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment;
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BRE R

s

review and discuss annually with
significant control failings or weaknesses
that are identified by the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor
and make recommendations to the Board.

Executive Committee

review the effectiveness of ESG-
related risk management and internal
control systems and report to the Audit
Committee for its review.

The management (includes CEO, heads
of business units, departments and
divisions)

design and implement the Control
Systems’ policies and procedures duly
endorsed by senior management and the
Board;

monitor the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to
mitigate risks in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up
the findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness
of the Control Systems in respect of all
material controls, including operational,
financial and compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise
them on the implementation of necessary
steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board on regular
basis.

Operational Control

During the Year, the management had analyzed

the control environment,

identified risks

pertaining thereto, and implemented various
controls therein as follows:

Approach taken: The management
communicates with relevant staff
members, reviews relevant documentation
of the internal control system and
evaluates findings of any deficiencies in
the design of the Group’s internal control
system, provides recommendations
for improvement and assesses the
effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the
Control Systems have been reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial that are information for internal
use and/or external publication.
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Management information system
and technology: To control over the
business activities, it allows close
tracking of various inputs and outputs
of the Group’s business such as raw
materials, inventories, products, customer
information and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorization
system, under which permissions and
responsibility of authorization are clearly
identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the Control Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports
and analysis of each operating segment in
the upstream, midstream and downstream
are conducted on a regular basis such
that the performance of each point of
sales and each product category can be
easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent
information flow alerts the management
promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons
with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: To safeguard
shops’ assets, security systems are
installed and properly maintained in good
condition at each shop. In addition,
tests are carried out on a regular basis
to ensure the proper functioning of the
security systems and implementation
of internal control procedures in daily
operations. Daily stock count for each
shop, regular and surprise stock counts
are arranged by the shop managers,
Assurance Team and Finance & Accounts
Department respectively. Annual stock
count is also carried out by external
auditors. Insurance coverage on
inventory is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and
to ensure compliance with the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies.
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Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations
for assessment and certification or are
tested internally with our own professional
equipment to assure the quality fulfills
good standard requirement. Besides,
gold products are sent to authoritative
precious metal laboratory to test the
contents on sample and regular basis. In
order to provide assurance of high quality
products and services and to enhance the
protection of our customers’ interest, the
Company had joined several associations
and schemes.

Proper authorization on sales
discounts: Discount policies are properly
maintained and controlled by electronic
point-of-sales systems. Discount policies
and pricing strategy are reviewed from
time to time.

(3)  Financial Control

proper controls are in place for the
recording of complete, accurate and
timely accounting and management
information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on
all capital and revenue items are prepared
and approved by the management before
being adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly
financial results of operations against
budgets/forecasts;

regular reports on revenue, trade
receivables’ ageing and debtors’ ageing
and internal financial reports are prepared
to the management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the
Group’s financial performance;
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PEEEBHRS
monthly updates on internal financial SAMRBERRERNEE
statements are provided to all Directors BHREOEH  ERHBELR
which give a balanced and understandable SRR\ -UBRARASR
assessment of the Group’s performance, SO ESE O 7NN £
financial position and prospects in TAEBEREHT
sufficient details;
annual audit by external auditor is carried SMNERZBRTIEITFE B IZNU
out to ensure that the consolidated EET%%?@W?“%E%@JHEF@
financial statements are prepared in RETRA-AEEBZE5
accordance with generally accepted BERBRANERRERR
accounting principles, the Group’s 8K
accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and
daily available fund report is reviewed to ERSHIHAEE®RE
monitor the cash flows against budgets/ URBReReRBE B
forecasts. B L IETTRR I o

(4)  Compliance Control (4) BEHEE

The following policies and procedures are in HEUTHERERFUREGRES
place to safeguard the compliance control: 2

50

Systems and procedures on disclosure
of inside information to ensure, with
the assistance of an internal work team
(if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, for the attention of
the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and
take appropriate measures to preserve
confidentiality of inside information until
proper dissemination of inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements
which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the CG Committee as
delegated by the Board;
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CCT Compliance Committee is
established to monitor, control and
regularly review connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper
compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy is established
to provide reporting channels and
guidance for employees and related
third parties who have business dealings
with the Group (e.g. customers and
suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the
Company. The Audit Committee, as
delegated by the Board, shall ensure
that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation
of any concerns raised, appropriate
follow-up actions are taken and other
recommendations are provided, if thinks
fit;

Anti-corruption policy is established to
outline the Group’s zero-tolerance stance
against bribery and corruption and assists
employees in recognising circumstances
that may lead to or give the appearance
of being involved in corruption or unethical
business conduct, so as to avoid such
conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance where necessary
or report any reasonably suspected case
of corruption or any attempts thereof, to
the management through an appropriate
reporting channel; and
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52

° Anti-money laundering and counter-
terrorist financing policy and
procedures is established to set out
the general framework for combating
against money laundering and financing of
terrorism. It provides guidelines to prevent
the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors
from being misused for money laundering,
terrorist financing or other financial
crime and has set out some indications
of potentially suspicious transactions/
activities for employees’ reference.

Risk Management

(1)

Risk Management Process

The Management regularly reviews overall risks
facing by the Group and changes in market
environment. The risk management process
includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
management measures and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated
by the Board and management based on (i) the
severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability and frequency
that the risks will occur; and (iii) the velocity or
speed at which risks can occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes
or controls that in effect eliminate the risk
entirely.

Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed
to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss
scenarios.

Risk control and monitoring - It
involves making decisions regarding which
risks are acceptable and how to address
those that are not. Accidents and other
situations involving loss or near-loss will
be investigated and properly documented
as part of the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention - The management
may decide that the risk rating is low
enough that the risk is acceptable level
and no action is required and the risk
will continue to be monitored as part of
the risk management program to ensure
the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.
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(2)  BEAE R EE
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(2)  Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified
through the process of risk identification and
assessment. Such significant risks of the Group
together with their respective key strategies/
control measures are set out below:

a) Decline in tourists’ arrivals and a) BEFXEREEZFKTE
consumption demand resulted from TR EE T BRTF=ZER
downturn in economic and unstable B TR (BRI
social conditions and also outbreak (B 2177 78 76 F 2 18 ~ FE
of contagious diseases such as BB il k)

CoOVID-19, SARS

Facing the unfavourable market situation, HHEHAFNNTIHZESE > &
the Group: :

proactively manages the Group’s
geographicalp resence and
develops alternative sales channels
including e-commerce and also
explores new on-line payment
solution;

optimises business operations and
shops establishments in Hong Kong
and Mainland China;

develops market diversification
beyond Hong Kong market; and

decisively takes stringent cost control
measures including human resources
streamline plan, negotiation for
rental concession, retail network
optimisation exercises including
shorten business hours, shops
closure plan, etc.
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Damage to brand name and
reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional
efforts in strengthening our brand image,
the Group has also given much attention
to:

o register of brand name and major
jewellery product collection names;

o conduct customer service training
and mystery shopper reviews to
ensure sales staff service standards;

° maintain product quality by various
means from vendor selection to
quality check upon delivery from
vendors; and

° brand name infringements which
are followed up by legal department
until completely resolved.

Reliance on major suppliers and
watch brands

In fact, the Group’s success largely rides
on its relationship with the world’s giant
watch suppliers and top-tier brands. The
loss of key brands may adversely affect
the Group’s business. To cope with this,
the Group:

U centralizes communication with
major watch brands suppliers
within top management and
continue to maintain watch brand
diversification;

U develops and maintains mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship
with all suppliers;

U continues to build up our own
jewellery brands; and

o arranges senior sales staff
inspecting all watches delivered to
shops.

b)

c)
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d)

e)

s

Excess and shortage of watch
inventory

The Group strives to be leading retailer
in bands that have higher consumer
appreciation and consequently stronger
profit yield. In order to achieve this leading
position, we:

° maintain close business relationship
and communication with watch
manufacturers to strive for optimal
and timely supply; and

° systematically review inventory
with updated sales forecasts to
determine appropriate inventory
level.

Substandard design and production
of jewellery

The Group’s strategy is to yield higher
gross margin and avoid price competition
with other market players. As such, quality
of our jewellery and highly regarded
designs are vital.

o The Group maintains a high quality
design team with good market
trend knowledge, measured by
effectiveness of successful product
design launched.

° Merchandising managers, design
managers, sales operation
managers and shop representatives
review all jewellery design before
approval by CEO for production.
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° Production vendors selection and
regular quality performance review
are conducted by merchandising
managers, technical manager and
in some cases jewellery design
manager.

° Merchandising managers, technical
manager and in some cases design
manager inspect jewellery product
mold and first sample before bulk
production.

o All jewellery products must pass
through quality inspection by quality
control team and shop front sales
team.

° Scanning of diamond by equipment
is used to avoid receiving synthetic
diamonds and procure diamonds
from international renowned suppliers.

° Higher value jewellery products are
tested by reputable and commonly
recognized third-party laboratories
who issue testing certificates.

Stable supply of raw materials at fair
price

In order to maintain our timely replenishment
and new product launch, we secure reliable
sourcing by:

° adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

° regularly reviewing and exploring
more attractive sources.

7
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g) Stock loss or theft g) HEEXILXHE

Since our stock items are easily concealable, HBEEmmZWUE > A&

the Group places very much attention on B FIEZEMmZRE

safeguarding them with all practicable FEEUHER—TUTIE
measures as follows: (=il

. CCTV monitoring and back up; . HREERERRE

%

o daily stock-take at shops; . BET/E AR R

. procedures and approval requirements . HEEHERaER
for stock transfer, and use of security NERFREHZRK
guarded service; Uk BRZERR

%

o security systems for stock locations; . B 137 T 3th B 28 BG (R %2
and EN T

o insurance coverage. . % BB IR

h)  Shop location and rental expenses h) EHUERAETHSE

. conduct adequate research and study . ETENRAE R
to ensure proper location selected; o UEREESE
and fiig; &

o perform feasibility study and scenario . ETATHRERE
analysis to ensure financial viability BT LR EE
on each new shop location including WMIEEAIE (B8
renewal of lease contract. SIHESN) N

Al T
i) Anti-money laundering i) Vil 24

Non-compliance with applicable anti-
money laundering laws would adversely
affect the Group’s business and reputation.
We shall:

o ensure anti-money laundering policy
and guidelines are in place;

ERBRAN LR BIRRET
FEHAEENEFREESE
PRARFI R E o g

. SIARERNMILERER
BHRKES

o enforce the relevant internal control . RETE G ITAER
procedures in all shops and assist A 3 85 2242 = 36 155 B
sales personnel to be familiar with HEAEAEB TR
“know your customers” approach; BEEI5H;
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° stay alert to the industrial practices
and co-operates with banks on case
investigation; and

° provide regular training to the staff.

J) Cyber security risks

To mitigate cyber security risks, the Group
has taken measures as follows:

U the Company’s IT infrastructure is
regularly scanned and patched;

o risky external IP addresses are blocked;

o emails are filtered for spam and
malware;

o specialized ransomware/virus detection

software are installed in all computers;

o access rights to the Group’s systems
are strictly controlled and regularly
reviewed;

° training for personnel about dangerous

email attachments; and

o regular backups of data for recovery.

The Board will make sure that the risks facing by
the Group shall be reviewed regularly, and the
management will take suitable measures to deal
with them on an ongoing basis.
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D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received
a confirmation from the management on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems of the Group for
the Year. The Audit Committee and the Board had
reviewed the Control Systems and were not aware
of any significant issues that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Group’s operational, financial and compliance areas of
the Control Systems.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has taken, and continues to take steps to
promote diversity at all levels of our workforce. We provide
equal opportunity to all employees regardless of gender, age,
family background, ethnicity, religion, nationality, sexuality,
disability, and other aspects of diversity and are against any
forms of discrimination.

As of 31 December 2022, our total workforce comprised of
70% female and 30% male, whereas senior management
comprised of 57% female and 43% male.

Although the retail sale of jewellery has been traditionally
a female-dominated sector, we value diversity within our
workforce and will continue to attract and retain male
employees by understanding and addressing current barriers
that they face. Therefore, no plan or measurable objectives
were deemed necessary for enhancing gender diversity at
workplace.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders.
The Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular
interim and final dividends (as the case may be) based on
the earnings attribution to its Shareholders after taking into
consideration of the factors as stated in the policy, including
inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for business operations;
(i) cash available, financial liabilities and capital commitment;
(iii) market environment and challenges; and (iv) future
development and investment opportunities. The declaration
of dividends or recommendation on such payment shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations
including but not limited to the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“CO”)
and the Articles of Association of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s Shareholders’ Communication Policy
(available on the website of the Company) sets out the
strategies, practices and commitment for maintaining on-
going and effective communication with Shareholders, both
individual and institutional, and in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large so as to enable them
to engage with the Company and exercise their rights
as shareholders in an informed manner. To this end, the
Company strives to ensure that all Shareholders have ready
and timely access to all publicly available information of the
Group. To facilitate communication with Shareholders and
the investment community, the Company has established
various communication channels, as follows: (i) the holding
of AGMs and extraordinary general meetings, if any,
which may be convened for specific purposes to provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly
to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual
reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules and press releases providing updated
information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group on the Company’s website at
https://www.EmperorWatchJewellery.com; (iv) the holding of
press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with
investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate
investor road shows and sector conferences.

Regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to
visit the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our
Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantially separate issues, including re-election of
retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders
for AGM is sent to Shareholders at least 21 days before the
meeting and notices of all other general meetings are sent
to Shareholders at least 14 days before the meetings. The
Chairperson of the Board and chairman/members of the
Board Committees, appropriate management executives
and the external auditor were available to attend the 2022
AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With the
assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting explained the procedures for conducting a poll
voting during the meeting.

The Company shall review the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy annually to ensure its implementation and
effectiveness. Having considered the multiple channels of
communication and engagement in place, the Board is
satisfied that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has
been properly in place during the Year and is effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code:

Right to Convene/Call General Meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may send a request to the Company pursuant to
Section 566 of the CO. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
and may include the text of resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A
request may be sent to the Company at its registered office
for the attention of the Company Secretary in hard copy
form or in electronic form and must be authenticated by the
relevant Shareholder(s). Such request will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and the Company Secretary will
request the Board to convene a general meeting within 21
days upon its confirmation that the request is in order. Such
meeting must be held on a date not more than 28 days after
the date of the notice convening the meeting and such notice
must include notice of the resolution.
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Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting, the
Shareholders representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a general
meeting, but the meeting so convened must be called for
a date not more than 3 months after the Directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting. The meeting
must be called in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the
Directors. The business that may be dealt with at the meeting
includes a resolution to be dealt with at the meeting. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders of this
purpose must be reimbursed by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders; or (ii) at least 50 Shareholders having a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM may request the Company
to circulate a notice of a resolution to be properly moved
or is intended to be moved at that meeting. Such request
must identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM, must
be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and sent to
the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
not later than 6 weeks before the relevant AGM or if later, the
time when the notice of AGM is despatched.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

AUDITOR'’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with applicable standards.
Members of the Audit Committee were of the view that
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”), is independent and had recommended the Board
to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2023 AGM.
During the Year, Deloitte and other statutory auditors had
rendered audit services and certain non-audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group
is set out as follows:

MHBERE X
RAREE FARZERERX L ECAEA
28 o

P2 BB 2 18 3L 1% e Bl <=

BERZEGERERBERZENERNEEZ
BB MEREFBED RS BRE
ZERUERBHRME -BRZZEGNERR A2
B2 ZHEMEE « MEMRA G617 (B8 B
BUANT LEAMEFSFELEERZ 102023
RERBFARG LEREADBE QB Z LM A
FERN BRREMEEZHAME R AEREH
BB RE T IRRBRE MAEREN &
TFRZMEE0T

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered Fff2 fi fR 75 it/ EHER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services Z# R 75 3,763
Non-audit services: JEIZBARFS :

— Agreed-upon procedures for continuing connected transactions 20

HEREXZEMERF
— Review of preliminary results announcement 10

BROSEBELS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF

EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
HEERKERRATE

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 72 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

By 7 A SR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 7 A SR T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

R EIZF 1R
MRBREEARZUMTHERSEG T B
FHBGREHBERETREBNEE ALY
TRBRERESMBREEBLS FERMIL
FRER MASRESEESEERER -

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MREZREE

Valuation of inventories — Jewelleries held for resale
FE—FIFEERE ZAE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMITMARERAREZEE

We identified the valuation of inventories — jewelleries
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgement and estimation associated with
determining the amount of allowance for inventories.

AZEMITREFE - RFEERBE 2 MER —HFES
ZEE FREREEGHGREMBEREREBMs t20E
BN REEEFERBERE A HIE kb5t

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories
— jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group’s policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the
items and the market condition. The management
reviews regularly the suitability of the allowance
policy and the amount of allowance for inventories
that are based on the estimation by considering
factors as detailed in the note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the allowance
for inventories. In addition, the management also
appoints an independent professional gemmologist
to perform valuation on certain jewellery items as
reference for allowance consideration.
REstFE-—FFEERE BESEN SEBEZBEER
RE2EEEERNETRAEHRRANFEZIERFIE-E
EBENDREBERNGEVBRRN4IFHEATERECZE
AZFAEZ st EHRABERRZBENL REEEE
TR BEENERE —RBEUIEEERETIUESE
THEEEETHEFAEEEZR22E
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories -
jewelleries held for resale included:
AEZEMTHGEEE FFEELE 2 HEREM 22
SRR

Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of reviewing and evaluating net
realisable value of inventories;

i THREEERNRIGFEVERFECER;

o Evaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and
conditions of inventories;

. BERTT L BEREAHEEN EEBRER
R FESEFI - FENRE R AT EHER
[E PR ER 4N BO 8BS B IR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued

Key audit matter

FREXEE

Valuation of inventories — Jewelleries held for resale
FE—IFIFBELE AE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

By 7 A SR

FHEEZEE-&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EZYMTNAIEERAREZEE

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of inventories — jewelleries held for
resale is HK$2,063,710,000, net of allowance of
HK$51,284,000, which represents 43% of the net
assets of the Group.

Mz EMBIRRWEAFTIKE > 102022F 128310 &
E-FHIFBELREREE#2,063,710,0008 7> B2
MNPR#EEHES1,284,0008 0 HHER BEXEEEEIFEZ
43% °

° Evaluating net realisable value of inventories
assessed by management, on a sample basis,
with reference to the selling prices of similar

products;

. FEEEE2TRAEERZHEBHETENGE
B8P E3031E ;

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist and obtaining an understanding
of the scope of work and the terms of
engagement; and

J B UEEEAQETCM AR ENIRER S
WTHRETEBERBEGRNR; &

° Understanding the valuation process
carried out by the independent professional
gemmologist on selected jewellery items and
checking the carrying amounts of selected
jewellery items to the jewellery appraisal report
to test that these items were recorded at lower
of cost and net realisable value.

. THREUEXE LG CMAMAGERELREEE
NEFURRKET GRS RREEEREEE
REE BRERSEMAETZRFEZRES
SCEE ©
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B 37 A T T

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group'’s internal control.

By 7 A SR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 37 A T T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2023

By 7 A SR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao 1 1H 2 B LAt 2 i W AR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
2022 2021
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B &5 F#ET TFAET
Revenue WA 5 3,684,261 3,926,608
Cost of sales THE R A (2,506,999) (2,697,103)
Gross profit EH] 1,177,262 1,229,505
Other income Hau A 6 9,828 8,848
Selling and distribution HERDHMAS
expenses (765,201) (840,549)
Administrative expenses THMAX (116,481) (113,566)
Other gains or losses Hh s 18 (21,268) (11,591)
Finance costs BB A AR 7 (6,896) (16,378)
Profit before tax B 5 BT iz ) 8 277,244 256,269
Taxation I8 10 (55,119) (51,574)
Profit for the year FERF 222,125 204,695
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEEMEE (B5) WA
income for the year
Item that may be reclassified — H#EAGEE#H T HE 87
subsequently to profit or EH
loss:
Exchange differences arising MEBNEBEFT ZER
on translation of EE
foreign operations (48,366) 14,433
Total comprehensive income AAREEAEHFEZ@EI
for the year and attributable AHAZE
to owners of the Company 173,759 219,128
Earnings per share — basic SREBN-EX 12 HK3.28 cents&fll  HK3.02 centsi# L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

or o A 55 R Dl e 3R
AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
R2022412831H
2022 2021
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5F TFHET TAET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment #) % - 83 R 5 H 13 1,516,410 1,615,723
Right-of-use assets TREEE 14 274,495 207,527
Rental deposits Heke 16 78,758 85,765
Deposits paid for acquisition of RS2 MR LB HE
property, plant and equipment BfJi% % 6,264 504
Deferred tax assets FEIERRIRE E 23 - 5,103
1,875,927 1,914,622
Current assets MEEE
Inventories Fa 15 2,703,418 2,710,757
Right to returned goods asset EE#HEE 21 1,286 1,553
Receivables, deposits and FEURIE & MBI I8
prepayments 16 136,024 166,226
Amounts due from related FE IR B A Bl FRIE
companies 22 782 753
Time deposits with original BEIHAA=ZEAE MU LN
maturity over three months EHER 17 198,200 -
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 17 466,192 556,344
3,505,902 3,435,633
Current liabilities mEmaE
Payables and accrued charges FE{JIEMESTE A 18 159,505 150,137
Lease liabilities HEaRE 19 200,838 160,343
Contract liabilities BHEE 20 13,380 18,653
Refund liabilities LEE =K 21 2,053 2,204
Amounts due to related FET B A B RIA
companies 22 6,954 2,122
Taxation payable FE(S IR 1B 50,742 36,455
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 - 165,452
433,472 535,366
Net current assets MEMEEFE 3,072,430 2,900,267
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 4 A 5 IR Dl R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
R2022FE12H31H

2022 2021
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
Non-current liabilities JERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EIEIRIB & & 23 4,036 2,088
Lease liabilities HEaR 19 99,262 91,111
103,298 94,099
Net assets BEEFE 4,845,059 4,720,790
Capital and reserves BXRREE
Share capital i 25 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves H1E 26 1,360,907 1,236,638
Total equity ErE 4,845,059 4,720,790

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 179 H72EF179B 2 &M HREXBN2023E3H
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 23HEZZETHAEREETE THTHESA
Directors on 23 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: PHEE

NG KOON KEUNG, RICKY WONG CHI FAI
RE® mEHE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

> A DL L2 3
RO MR R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
Share Merger Other Capital  Translation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
B B G Hitf e BRfEE ERfHEE A& gt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TR THET THET THET THET THET
(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(Mist26(a))  (Miz26(b))  (HizE26(c))
At 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,199) 2,629 4,040 1,457,595 4,549,118
Profit for the year FERA - - - - - 204,695 204,695
Exchange differences arising HEENEREEZE
on translation of foreign RER
operations - - - - 14,433 - 14,433
Total comprehensive income FEXEWALE
for the year - - - - 14,433 204,695 219,128
Final dividend paid for 2020 20205 B2 KK E
(note 11) (HizE11) - - - - - (10,169) (10,169)
Interim dividend paid for 2021 2021 E Btz hHRE
(note 11) (HizE11) - - - - - (37,287) (37,287)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,1995) 2,629 18,473 1,614,834 4,720,790
At 1 January 2022 20221810 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 18,473 1,614,834 4,720,790
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 222,125 222,125
Exchange differences arising HEENEREEZE
on translation of foreign RER
operations - - - - (48,366) - (48,366)
Total comprehensive (expense)  EEZ2E (Bx%) WA
income for the year 4% - - - - (48,366) 222,125 173,759
Final dividend paid for 2021 01BN ZRBRE
(note 11) (HizE11) - s - - - (23,728) (23,728)
Interim dividend paid for 2022~ 2022E Btz HHRE
(note 11) (HizE11) - s - - - (25,762) (25,762)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12831H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (29,893) 1,787,469 4,845,059
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

rABEeRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12H31HIELFEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TFAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES B
Profit before tax FRHR AR A 277,244 256,269
Adjustments for: HEE
(Reversal of) allowance for FE (B0 #E
inventories (1,839) 16,604
Depreciation of property, ME SR RREBINE
plant and equipment 127,105 128,785
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fERHEEEITE 226,731 266,166
Impairment loss recognised M E B R ERS 2 RE
in respect of property, 548
plant and equipment 129 6,729
Impairment loss recognised in FEAEEERD ZBEREE
respect of right-of-use assets 500 7,939
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE FHYE - HESRREZ
property, plant and equipment 518 2,074 1,373
Gain arising from termination/ A MERFTEE 2 W
modification of leases (162) (50)
Reversal of allowance EEBEEHED
for credit losses - (665)
Interest income FE WA (7,984) (8,653)
Finance costs EEE= YN 6,896 16,378
Operating cash flows before RSB EESEPR o RKERE
movements in working capital ME 630,694 690,875
(Increase) decrease in inventories EFE2z (gm R (27,673) 311,181
Decrease (increase) in right to BEREERD (gm
returned goods asset 267 (759)
Decrease (increase) in receivables,  EURIE 12 & & FEM FRIE R D
deposits and prepayments (38 10) 24,566 (14,628)
Increase in amounts due FE Uit A 3/ B) SR IE S D
from related companies (29) (192)
Increase in payables and FEFRIB R FEt & FIE N
accrued charges 12,249 11,092
(Decrease) increase in a88E (L) g
contract liabilities (5,273) 8,776
(Decrease) increase in refund liabilities 3B & & (Bi2) M (151) 1,169
Increase (decrease) in amounts FEATREE A B A IEE M GRL D)
due to related companies 4,832 (2,500)
Net cash generated from operations #&& 18> IREF5 639,482 1,005,014
Income taxes paid EfFTER (33,907) (31,452)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RE TSRS R
ACTIVITIES 605,575 973,562
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

rABeRER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12H31HIEEE
2022 2021
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TFHET TAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEH
Refunds of rental deposits REHES®RE 29,518 11,890
Increase in rental deposits HEZSEM (20,581) (1,180)
Increase in deposits paid WHEEM = IR B
for acquisition of property, [SEDE il
plant and equipment (5,760) (140)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BRIRKEZ
property, plant and equipment  FriS 218 3 -
Purchase of property, EEWE -BERRE
plant and equipment (31,472) (34,150)
Placement of time deposits FREHAA=M@EULRN
with original maturity over EHER
three months (198,200) -
Interest received BUWF B 6,054 6,141
NET CASH USED IN KREEHFMAZRE 28
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (220,438) (17,439)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLEES
Dividends paid ERRE 33 (49,490) (47,456)
Interest paid BRFE 33 (6,896) (16,378)
Bank borrowings raised BEB8ZRTEE 33 300,000 400,000
Repayments of bank borrowings BiZERTEE 33 (465,452) (873,241)
Repayments of lease liabilities fEEHAE&E 33 (244,428) (271,527)
NET CASH USED IN MEEHFAZRE R
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (466,266) (808,602)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE R&RHEZEY
IN CASH AND CASH GriZb) G5 %8
EQUIVALENTS (81,129) 147,521
CASH AND CASH FNzZzRERAETEEY
EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 556,344 405,111
Effect of foreign exchange rate JMNEEREF > 2%
changes (9,023) 3,712
CASH AND CASH FERZEERAETEEY
EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF THE YEAR 466,192 556,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

1.

78

GENERAL INFORMATION

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”)
is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company is Emperor Watch &
Jewellery Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J
Holdings”) which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”). The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) consider that its ultimate holding company
is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the BVI. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre, 288
Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE")

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)

for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for

the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January

2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and

prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

A o3 B 5 R B

EREEBBMHHREER
(TEBMBREER)) REE
s ERESRZE (£8
T1) ZERBERE

FEEBHERNEETERHEFHR
HER

REFE AEEEEREABUTHEE
SEAE ((BEBESHMAE)) BRNE
B BREEINET A Ht202251 81
AR A EEFEHRE RS £ LUk
RIRGMBRE

ERVBREEN  HIERNRA

B2 ETE

EANBREER 2021 E6B30E B F2019BHAES
ERl A FRENES AR
ERGHENFI6% NE BERRE-BERRAN
CHES FisaE
EERHENENR, BEAN-BIEANME
CHE

EEMBREERZ  BEMBRIERN1EE
K 2020FMERENE

rFEERAEBMBREER ZEBITAY
AEBRTFERBEFENMBRRIK
PR/ AHZE R M B RRTEOR
BUESATE-

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 5 2 iE X Bk E R AT

Annual Report 2022 £ #§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

RRKESTEBYHBRSEL
(TEBMBREED)) RERK
MR EEREERES ((£5
T1) ZERERE &

EREMERRERZHTREETE
ARG AR
AEBTRREFERAUTEEMEHRE
M2 ] RAES] B BM B REER

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

EENBEREENETR
(820205108 K
20222 BB AN
REERBITR 2R

EENBREENF10%
REBGHERF8SEZ
EHES

BENBREENF 1652
CHES

BERQHENFIKZBILA

BREHERFIRZETE

ERAGHENFIRRE B

BREENBHERSER
PACHES

AT ENESR 2 BIR

EEQHERFE R
EiTE

REEA

REZHABENTHAE
TEZENEELE
HE

EREDNEEAR

BENEARBIERBR
EERBESNERE]
(2020) ®

MERENFRBER

EHRORE'

EoHEHESR'

RE-RBELZEERA
FEAHZELRE

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! R2023F1B1HS 2 BHBENEFEER

January 2023. BIE

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 2 REETHHRR 2 ARENFEERRD
to be determined. E o

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 R2024F1B1HS 2 BHBENEFEER
January 2024. BIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“‘COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

Except for the amendment to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 AND HKFRS
PRACTICE STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

A o3 B 5 R B

EREEBBMHHREER
(TEBMBREER)) REE
s ERESRZE (£8
T1) ZERIERE &

EEMERHRERZHMIREETE
AMBREER —2Z

PRI XFTR Rz EBMBREER ZEF]
I ERTRMEAMAENMI REEITE
BUBREENNIRR G I EHES
MBRRENERTE-

BBGERF1FREBAFHE
HRIEFEHREF2HR ZE5] KT 51
R EE

BEARAGSEBIREEIUTERNG ]
REMBRTEZG BRI —ANMRA
BRo-HERBRMBRERAEMEN —
HER GFHRENIUSERRER
ERRMBRENIECREREZSY
BIRERFEHAVRE  BIX Gt HREH
BEK-

ZEEITTEBB EIRREBALFE
ROEERBEXZEE HMERLE
o EETERERMI R BERX - 2AT > W IF
PREREARS HMEERBEREBEN
S RREMASGABEKR - —BERE
EERBEFEAESHHREN AFER
T REEERGHBRER

BERAVBREERNEBRS F2RFLHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 AND HKFRS
PRACTICE STATEMENT 2 DISCLOSURE OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting
policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 8 DEFINITION OF
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may
require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must
instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the
objective set out by the accounting policy. Developing
accounting estimates involves the use of judgements
or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“‘COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF
LIABILITIES AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT
AND RELATED AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG INTERPRETATION & (2020) (THE “2020
AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS
(THE “2022 AMENDMENTS”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’'s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.

A o3 B 5 R B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

2.

84

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF
LIABILITIES AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT
AND RELATED AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG INTERPRETATION & (2020) (THE “2020
AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS
(THE 2022 AMENDMENTS’) — continued

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Covenants which are required
to comply with only after the reporting period do
not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk
that the liabilities could become repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period, if the entity
classify liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity’s right to defer settlement
of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND
AGENDA DECISIONS OF THE IFRS
INTERPRETATIONS COMMITTEE (THE
“‘COMMITTEE”) - continued

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE - continued

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 CLASSIFICATION OF
LIABILITIES AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT
AND RELATED AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG INTERPRETATION & (2020) (THE “2020
AMENDMENTS”) AND AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES WITH COVENANTS
(THE 2022 AMENDMENTS’) — continued

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective
date of applying the 2020 Amendments to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024. The 2022 Amendments, together with the 2020
Amendments, are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with early
application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31
December 2022, the application of the 2020 and 2022
Amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group'’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.

86

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value-
in-use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 WA 5 2R Y wE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE2022512H31AEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEFZEHBFHRENKEBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RKEETHER

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 31 RUSEHBERRNKE—Z
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, o> M EHREMS A AEBE
fair value measurements are categorised into FTERBAMEBEFSENABIE .
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which EREERLABEFEZHA
the inputs to the fair value measurements are HIEHEBRB EEMDEAE —
observable and the significance of the inputs to s ZERE =R SEIBIE -

the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices . — R ABBERAEERE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical EHATUREZTTH#H A E
assets or liabilities that the Group can EFEEREEMB ZRE
access at the measurement date; (REEAEE) ;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than . “HhBmABEBEENEENE
quoted prices included within Level 1, that EEERYBEMOIER &G
are observable for the asset or liability, AR (BEE—HKANZR
either directly or indirectly; and BrRIN) 5 &

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for . —HRMABBEREERNER
the asset or liability. TR EHER 2 B A BUER ©

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EAgHEE

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION REREEE

The consolidated financial statements REMBRREELARBRAKAT

incorporate the financial statements of the TR zERMENB R Z M HBR

Company and entities controlled by the KoMBUTER AR ERS

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is PR HE

achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee; . AHKEEHRITHERED;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable . A2 EBEHRZEHMmA
returns from its involvement with the ESHNAERERFSITEZ[DR ;
investee; and Y4

o has the ability to use its power to affect its . EREANBTHEHEIMEE
returns. ZFE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

88

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION — continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements items of
the combining businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been
consolidated from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL - continued

The net assets of the consolidated entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

U the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

90

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of
transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, including customer
loyalty programme, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,
except for the allocation of discounts and
variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct
good or service underlying each performance
obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would
sell a promised good or service separately to
a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 105 o 3R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

MG EMBRERNVKIERE
REHER—#&

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return or
exchanges for goods, the Group estimates
the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the expected value method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present
at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the
Group expects to refund some or all of the
consideration received from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMEGKEUBBRRNVKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL KNG stER—4

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 32 EXREGHHR-—E
— continued
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH F’EEFSHZIKA —E
CUSTOMERS - continued
Sales with a right of return/exchange RERE HMERZHE
For a sale of products with a right of return/ HREBARE MEFRERZE
exchange for dissimilar products, the Group MzERBE AEBEDRUTAHR
recognises all of the following: BEE
(@)  revenue for the transferred products in (a) EHAEBRFEHAEKE K
the amount of consideration to which the BERICEBR 2 ERZBA
Group expects to be entitled (therefore, (At T2 FERBERE
revenue would not be recognised for SEZ ERBERBA) ;
the products expected to be returned/
exchanged);
(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and b)) EXNEEEHEE; X
(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment (0 mMERERWEESRZ#EF
to cost of sales) for its right to recover MREE (REREZHER
products from customers and are KAE) W2 ARERE
presented as right to returned goods EEo
asset.
Principal versus agent EFEFEALAREA
When another party is involved in providing EBS—AF2HEREFREEHBLSH
goods or services to a customer, the Group R% AEESETHBEASMEX
determines whether the nature of its promise EMERBESREEEHRIR
is a performance obligation to provide the B EIAEEBETEN) ERTH
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group S—rHiEHZEERIRT BIE
is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or EEBRIEN) o

services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the MAEERRAERERIEER M
specified good or service before that good or AR# 2RI B HEHIZ i MRS Al
service is transferred to a customer. REBBFEEAN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS - continued

Principal versus agent — continued

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of the
specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

LEASES
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

94

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying
other applicable standards.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (*HKFRS 9”)
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 13 S 5 ¥R AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities — continued

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in
market rental rates are initially measured using
the market rental rates as at the commencement
date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities — continued

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments. The Group remeasures lease liabilities
(and makes a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use assets) whenever the
lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

98

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

LEASES - continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease modifications — continued

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability, less any lease incentives
receivables, based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2ES % EH R AT

Annual Report 2022 £ $§

im 2
g

3.2

M BRERNKIERE
TR

ERGHBE—&F

HE—#&
FTEEFEHEAMA—E

MAFR—BEBEEARNEE
Ems  ~EBENBEBERE
PER BB E ST R IR R AL IR AL
BT BN EERAEREBR
EMtEREAERETANEKEAER
BE-

AERBEBHNEREREEEET
BERE HHEEENEME
ETEstRE -EENENEGNE
ZHEMEMER D —E 5 2 EEEIH
HESIFAEEANB R AEE
SRBFEEEMBOMNEHBIE
MR IFEEEME DR E5HEILE
BB ERENENREDEESRE
HEMERE D o

s

RERSEEEERE 2T HBERE
o U BEREEBLUSINEE (O
B EEZRZBRXSBHERZ
ERES -NERMABEEH U
IBEREZERERENRZAER
ZEXRBRIQE - RELITER
SNESTEBZIFERIERBAEMR
Ho



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FOREIGN CURRENCIES - continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except
for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in the foreign operation), which
are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of quality assets are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

100

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Government grants relating to
compensation of expenses are deducted from
the related expenses, other government grants
are presented under “other income”.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries and
annual leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

102

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

TAXATION - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-
of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in
net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

104

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for a
prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indicator that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indicator exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

106

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
— continued

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-
generating unit for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
— continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of
cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

108

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
— continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand
and demand deposits, excluding bank
balances that are subject to regulatory
restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of
short-term (generally with original maturity
of three months or less), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
— continued

For the purposes of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is
determined on a weighted average basis for gold
and specific identification basis for watches and
other jewellery items depending on the nature
of the inventory. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated cost of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

110

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

PROVISIONS - continued

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased
assets to their original condition, as required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, are
recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to restore the assets,
estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 157).
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

iR
g

3.2

A o3 B 5 R B

e M BRERNKIERE
TR -4

ERGHBE—&E

THITR—&

ETRMEEREREBENIHARE
B8 BEEBERENZES
EWRIRTRIBEBMBRESER
BIoREFL Gz Wm (EBME
WEERE165E) Pt ERRIP
BWRAETETMEERTRERE
BEENRXZMATRI)D HERDE
MAEZMEERETMEBEZANE
EXETHMEENTHRERZAR
BEHR RBABRME) °

BRAFEZ—EEABABEAA
RtEcHEENSHAEEZCH
8 R A LUK 93 Be ) B A e F) B B
X2hE - BREMNEXEDREME
EXTRBERAFHN (WERA)
REPBZ G RRREAR (B
EERERMNXEESINAER
NHEWRER X5l 4 KR EME
BRITE) BRMREEE RNEDHN
REDFEZFR

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 5 2 iE X Bk E R AT m

Annual Report 2022 £ #§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

112

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
companies, rental deposits, time deposits with
original maturity over three months and cash
and cash equivalents), which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o A 5 2R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

For other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 105 o 3R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE2022512H31AEEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEFZEHBFHRENKEBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RKEBETHER—&

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
— continued

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

3.2 EBAGHEBER-&

T TH—%&

EHMEE—E

EREERE

() GERRBEZEN—&

AEME FEEEERRE

TREEMEEEEUTE
ok

. TR TR ZINER (N
B) iR BEEFTR
BERLNEHRETES
=1t

. S ER TR B IEIRRR S
EREREERL W
EFEEEEBEZEEM-
BHAZEEENE
HERBRERNE

. BE T RALEIR
BERRBHERN G W
RAMEE > KR
AENEHBAEEH
BHZEADKRET

%

. BHANEEXENE
REFRIMERSIE;

. BHAREZEE
B AMIRIZE R
ERBEHEHIBEEX
NHFEAE > HAI R
BHENEBEEHEBZ
BEFIKIE T % o

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 5 2 iE X Bk E R AT 115

Annual Report 2022 £ #§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

3.

116

3.2

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
- continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

3.

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
— continued

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 13 S 5 ¥R AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

3.

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables from contracts with customers
when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information, such as Gross Domestic
Product (i.e. GDP). Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 13 S 5 ¥R AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
- continued

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Except for the trade debtors with
significant balances which are assessed
individually, ECL for other financial assets
is considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

The Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

° Nature of financial instruments
(including trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits,
amounts due from related
companies, time deposits with
original maturity over three months
and cash and cash equivalents);

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where
available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
— continued

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.

122

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial liabilities and equity — continued
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

issue

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables,
other payables, amounts due to related
companies and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset at
amortised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities — continued

The Group derecognises financial liability
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES -
JEWELLERIES HELD FOR RESALE

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories
— jewelleries held for resale, it is the Group’s policy
to review the net realisable value of inventories
periodically with reference to the condition of the items
and the market condition. The management of the
Group reviews regularly the suitability of allowance
policy and estimates the amount of allowance for
inventories based primarily current market conditions,
historical and current sales information, pricing policy
and strategies plan, inventory realisation, as well as
the ageing and conditions of inventories to identify
slow-moving items. In addition, the management also
appoints an independent professional gemmologist
to perform valuation on certain jewellery items as
reference for allowance consideration. The Group
carries out an inventory review at the end of the
reporting period and makes allowance. When the
subsequent estimated amount of allowance for
inventories is less than the original cost, a material
allowance may arise. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of inventories for jewelleries held
for resale is HK$2,063,710,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$51,284,000) (31 December 2021:
HK$2,011,104,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$52,559,000)).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail
customers and commission income from services
provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods
at the retail shop. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the customer purchases
the goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
— continued

For commission income, revenue is recognised when
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop.

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

Information reported to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”), the Executive Director of the
Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the
locations of the operations. This is also the basis
upon which the Group is arranged and organised. The
Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are operations located in Hong Kong,
Macau, The People’s Republic of China excluding
Hong Kong and Macau (“PRC”) and other regions in
Asia Pacific (representing Singapore and Malaysia). The
revenue generated by each of the operating segments
is mainly derived from sales of watch and jewellery. No
operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of
the Group.

All the sales of products and commission income are
completed within one year. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDZER —#&
— continued
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTARERRAREGEZ 2R EEE
results by reportable and operating segment: DESD AT
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F128310 L FE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific  Elimination Consolidated
5# ] HE TAEMME bk &a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER THET
Revenue LN
External sales SRHEE 1,644,971 216,137 1,186,332 628,146 - 3,675,586
Inter-segment sales” AEREHEE 39,513 36,175 - - (75,688) -
Commission income BEBA 7,542 1,133 - - - 8,675
1,692,026 253,445 1,186,332 628,146 (75,688) 3,684,261
* Inter-segment sales are *DHEHEE
charged at cost RS
Segment profit AEpER) 166,964 33,988 181,202 121,988 - 504,142
Unallocated other income KAREMBA 9,828
Unallocated corporate expenses kDB E 2% (208,562)
Unallocated other gains or losses K HECE iz 3518 (21,268)
Unallocated finance costs FOBRBEML (6,896)
Profit before tax C3inhavl 277,244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

A o3 B 5 R B

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDZER —#&
— continued
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HIEEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific  Elimination  Consolidated
5% B hE SAEMME bk &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue WA

External sales SRBE 1,737,379 370,731 1,227,807 586,971 - 3,922,888
Inter-segment sales” NHEHE 125,342 16,225 - - (141,567) -
Commission income BElA 1,872 1,848 - - - 3,720
1,864,593 388,804 1,227,807 586,971 (141,567) 3,926,608

* Inter-segment sales are *ABEHE

charged at cost RS
Segment profit AEET 137,376 48,709 188,250 106,702 - 481,037
Unallocated other income FAREMBA 8,848
Unallocated corporate expenses kA& £H% (205,647)
Unallocated other gains or losses k3 B E A1l & 3 58 (11,591)
Unallocated finance costs FORBEML (16,378)
Profit before tax PREEDRR 256,269

The accounting policies of the reportable and
operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned from each segment
without allocation of other income, corporate expenses
including depreciation charged on the self-owned
flagship shop, other gains or losses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

No assets and liabilities are included in the measures
of the Group’s segment reporting that are regularly
reviewed by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment
assets and liabilities are presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE20226F12831HILFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRDZER —#&
— continued
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HithpEE R
Amounts included in the measure of segment result: FADBEETEC T
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F1283101LLEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
5% R HE EAEMME KPR =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note b)
(Mzth)
Depreciation of property, NE BBERREBNE
plant and equipment 108,685 2,609 7,212 2,938 5,661 127,105
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EBEEERE 173,405 9,143 26,870 7,258 10,055 226,731
Expense relating to rented HREMEEREY
premises (Note a (fffz¥a) 2,101 18 90,980 15,376 671 109,146
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12831HIEEE
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  AsiaPacific  Unallocated Consolidated
5% B RE SAEMME xRk =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note b)
(Bt 5ko)
Depreciation of property, ME BERRENE
plant and equipment 107,584 3,685 6,638 4,916 5,962 128,785
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEEEENE 209,540 12,532 23,955 9,010 11,129 266,166
Expense relating to rented HEENEERZEY
premises (Note a) (fftz¥a) 960 329 98,599 11,136 771 111,795
Notes: BT
(a) Expenses relating to rented premises include expenses (a) AAEYERH A EEATEME
relating to variable lease payments and rental expenses ENRARHAzHAIRETHZEEY
for contracts which the landlords have the substantive *EFSEMEHENSGNZEEH
right to substitute the rented premises. Fo
(b) Unallocated represents amount used for office. (b) ROMIERARMAEZ R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 105 o 3R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

— continued
REVENUE BY MAJOR PRODUCTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

5. WAKRDEER &

FEEMZBA

AEERETEZERRRBZWAD RN

from its major products and services: e

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
Sales of watch i & 1E ik 3,008,968 3,265,202
Sales of jewellery HEKE 666,618 657,686
Commission income — Watch xR A — % 8,675 3,720
3,684,261 3,926,608

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION E &R

Information about the Group’s non-current assets,
excluding rental deposits and deferred tax assets,
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets are detailed below:

ERMREEMEMBUEZ R AEBIE
MBEE HAERE RELERESE ERIN

ZEHFBEHRIWNT -

As at 31 December 2022 1420225 12831H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Consolidated
&5 R HE  EAHMEE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AT TET TET THET THERT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,686,712 8,430 77,117 24,910 1,797,169
As at 31 December 2021 720215F12831H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific  Consolidated
55 B HE  DAEMME T4
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TERT TER TET TER TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,711,497 13,617 86,582 12,058 1,823,754

No revenue from a single customer amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s total revenue for both years.

RMEFE SERBEAERE-—TFZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y A\ :‘t ;\
or B W5 i R B R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BE2022F 12831 EEE
6. OTHER INCOME Ham A
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FAT
Interest income RITERF) B WA
from bank deposits 6,054 6,141
Interest income HEZEF EWA
from rental deposits 1,930 2,512
Government grants 1S #78 Bf 548 -
Others Hih 1,296 195
9,828 8,848
7.  FINANCE COSTS RRE A4S
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFNR 688 6,406
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGHE 6,208 9,972
6,896 16,378
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 105 o 3R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

8. [FRIIRDEA

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR
Profit before tax has been arrived R ANEF 205 GTA)
at after charging (crediting): THEE
Auditor’s remuneration % B B =
- Current year —KEE 3,763 3,520
— Overprovision in prior years —BEEEBRERE (62) (222)
Cost of inventories included HEMAANZFERAE
in cost of sales (included (BiIEGEEHED
reversal of allowance for 1,839,000/ 7T) (20214 :
inventories of HK$1,839,000 FE#1%16,604,0007 7T)
(2021: allowance for inventories
of HK$16,604,000)) 2,499,637 2,692,567
Reversal of allowance EEBEERED
for credit losses - (665)
Depreciation of property, YN AR R R EINE
plant and equipment
— retail shops —EEEH 121,444 122,823
— offices NS 5,661 5,962
127,105 128,785
Depreciation of right-of-use assets R EEERE
— retail shops —ZSEEH 216,676 255,037
- offices | NS 10,055 11,129
226,731 266,166
Staff costs, including Directors’ BINAE BFESME
remuneration (note 9(a)) (F$5£9(a))
- salaries and other benefits —frekEMENER
costs (Note) (B %) 237,459 264,738
- retirement benefits scheme —IRIREA] 5t EIHE R
contributions 25,451 23,804
262,910 288,542
Included in other gains or losses: st A EH it a 18 :
Impairment loss recognised in T E TR R TR
respect of property, B IE
plant and equipment 129 6,729
Impairment loss recognised in MEREEERD ZRAE
respect of right-of-use assets &518 500 7,939
Loss on disposals/write-off of HE HiEE ISR E
property, plant and equipment 2 B8 2,074 1,202
Gain arising from termination/ HERIE ERFREEZ
modification of leases W (162) (50)
Net exchange losses (gains) FERE R (W) 38 18,727 (4,229)
21,268 11,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE20226F12831HILFE
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX - continued 8. MRMalat—#&

Note: During the current year, the Group recognised st RAFE AEERENETHEEEE
government grants to HK$9,217,000 in respect of COVID- 8 B8 B9 %8 AL B SR BUN 45 B09,217,00078
19-related subsidies, of which HK$7,383,000 relates to 7t 217,383,000 7T & B BUNT 12
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong HEY MRBL 2 5+ 8B B K 1,286,000
government and HK$1,286,000 related to Jobs Support 7 5L N0 3% R AT 4R M B9 R EE S i 5T A
Scheme provided by the Singapore government. These B -ZEREERAFENETRA
amounts have been offset against staff cost for the year. 8 o

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EFENEEM=E

EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS (A) E=
Details of the emoluments paid and payable to B E2022F K20215F12831H Lk
the Directors for the years ended 31 December FECZENKRENEEZMEFE
2022 and 2021 are as follows: W
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B ZE2022F 128310 L FEE

Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment contributions (note) Total
ek E3:) BHEF Hith
ik =4 BRI B (M z%) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET THET FTHET THET TET
Executive Directors RiTES
Ms. Cindy Yeung BHEILt 250 2,475 - 55 2,020 4,800
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky 273 %% 250 2,544 384 60 - 3,238
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEREE 250 - - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, PEEL T
Vanessa 250 - - - - 250
Independent Non- BAERTES
executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene i3 %+ 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEERLE 220 - - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne [EZ¥ %+ 220 - - - - 220
1,660 5,019 384 115 2,020 9,198
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A o3 B 5 R B

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEFENEEME-#&
EMOLUMENTS - continued
(A) DIRECTORS - continued A) EXE—#
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HIEEE
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and incentive scheme Others
Fees allowance payment contributions (note) Total
ek eI BAREF Hth
we R RERE BRI (Pt zE) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT FTET TERT TERT TAERT
Executive Directors HiTES
Ms. Cindy Yeung BByt 250 3,437 - 60 2,400 6,147
Mr. Ng Koon Keung, Ricky 2% %%
(appointed on 1 July 2021) (202178 1H
EZT) 125 1,176 432 30 - 1,763
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEBEE 250 - - - - 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Pek:/ i oqn
Vanessa 250 - - - - 250
Independent Non- BiIERTES
executive Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene  [E#%%+ 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEELE 220 - - - - 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne MZE¥ %+ 220 - - - - 220
1,535 4,613 432 90 2,400 9,070
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2022, a sum of Wizt : EZE2022F12H31HILEEE
HK$2,020,000 (2021: HK$2,400,000) was paid to MEHEBLTRETFAEEN
a company controlled by Ms. Cindy Yeung for the Rt RABHARBTEBORS
provision of her services relating to design and MEZEHZABDIZNT—FER
consulting services rendered to the Group. 182,020,000/ 75 (20214 :
2,400,000 7T) ©
(B) EMPLOYEES (B) fEE

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2021: two) were
Director whose emoluments are included in note
9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2021: three) individuals were as follows:

AERZEUERSHFNEES W
i (20216 : M) BEE-HREZ
&S FS LI EEQ(a) o BR T = 1U
(20214 © =) 2 EBHam T :

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET TFAET

Salaries and allowance e RoEREL 3,689 4,793

Performance related incentive FRIZHEEIFE

payment 551 198
Retirement benefits scheme  RBKEH 5+ =K

contributions 185 172

4,425 5,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE20225F12H31HIEFE
9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENEEME-#&
EMOLUMENTS - continued
(B) EMPLOYEES - continued (B) EE —#&
Their emoluments were within the following WEZFHMEBENT

bands:

Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001 TE
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to 1,500,001 E
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000% 75 1 2

Notes: MI5E -

(i) The fees paid or payable to the Executive (i) BN REMNTESRE
Directors and Independent Non-executive UFRTEEZHRENEFSE
Directors shown above were for their services in MEETARARBDESMREBZR
connection with their services as directors of the HER-

Company.

(i) The salaries and allowance, performance related (i) B REMRNITES 25
incentive payment and retirement benefits scheme SREW-RIBEFHEIZIRER
contributions paid or payable to the Executive REFABHRDERERE
Directors shown above were for their services in BAEESEMERZRBEE
connection with the management of the affairs of fif] o
the Group.

(iif) The performance related incentive payment is (iif) RIEREBBESZIDEAEEZHG
a discretionary bonus determined based on BREKBEEERFMBERZMHE
the financial performance of the Group and the SEEZMWNIBIEAL
commission earned by selling the products.

(iv) No Directors waived or agreed to waive any (iv) B E2022F 12831 H K&20214F
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 12831HIEFE HEESEK
2022 and 31 December 2021. BEREEBEREEAMNE

(v) During the years ended 31 December 2022 (v) B E2022F12831H K&20214F

and 31 December 2021, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors of the
Group or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

A o3 B 5 R B

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
10. TAXATION I8
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
The tax charge for the FRMNELZHEIE
year COmprises:
Current year: KEE !
Hong Kong 58 6,200 7,039
Macau P 3,797 5,673
PRC =157 24,987 19,1483
Singapore i 20,108 16,313
55,092 48,168
(Over)underprovision BEFE (BREES)
in prior years: BETE !
Hong Kong 558 (3,556) -
Macau VP (2,575) (2,153)
Singapore i - 87
(6,131) (2,066)
Deferred taxation (note 23) IRIERIAE (f5E23) 6,158 5,472
55,119 51,574

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both
years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated
at 12% of the estimated assessable profits for both
years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC is 25% for both years.

REBEFEHMABT CEREEEREE
2,000,0007 7T jam ) & #28.25 % 158 E &R >
i8i82,000,00078 70 Z & F) H 1216.5% 0
EHR - AHFEFERMARFERZEE
BREZEABEER16.5% 2 8 —MEH
ﬁo

BEERR FNERMRTNEREM I R
FHAEGRESVBRRU BB ARG  -ME
FEZEENSREOREABRR AT 2
16.5%5T & ©

WA FE 2 B T RIIL b ER
s Z212%stE o

RIBPEBERFRE (REMRSRED
RIEEREREABRIEA > X QFEREH
ZH B AR R MEFEZRER25% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

10. TAXATION - continued 10.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

MIE—&
B E 2 Fi N P18 R 193 (h st FE R AR
WA Z1T%ErE o

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No
provision for Malaysia Income Tax has been made as
the Company’s subsidiary did not have any assessable
profit arising from Malaysia for both years.

MEFE 2 ERFAEPMSH GRS ER
MG Z24%stHE - K MEFERN > AR
KRB B AB BN ERFAE R ELEM
FESRR A F] » R UL LB 2R FE R AT 1SR
LB o

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23. RIEFRIE 2 sH 1B &AL MY EE23 0
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

REERBEEFSEGR REMDEIRAR
KR ZBERANEAN HRWT ¢

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Profit before tax FRIR AT = F) 277,244 256,269
Tax charge at Hong Kong #16.5% 2 EBFERNE
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% Bz H1E (20214 .
(2021: 16.5%) 16.5%) 45,745 42,284
Tax effect of expenses not ROREE 2 MBTE
deductible for tax purpose 11,764 21,976
Tax effect of income not taxable EERRWA ZRFFTE
for tax purpose (1,267) (2,712)
Effect of different tax rates of B AR REMBENEAERE
subsidiaries operating REZARAMEZZE
in other jurisdictions 4,597 3,705
Tax effect of tax losses not CIER R INEY GE =¥ 3=
recognised 999 2,353
Utilisation of tax losses B SAIRTESS 2 M IBE 1R
previously not recognised (493) (13,823)
Over provision in respect of BEFEZBRERE
prior years (6,131) (2,066)
Others Hh (95) (143)
Taxation for the year FERIE 55,119 51,574
The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is PRz EBNERENAERERTE

the domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the
operation of the Group is substantially based. Taxation
arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

FriEml iz e SR E REMBE AR
BELSZRENIZBBEAEE ZBRR
Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S 105 o 3R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

HZE20226E12831HILFE
11. DIVIDENDS 11. KB
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TR
Dividends recognised as MRBABEFEDRZEE !
distribution during the year:
2021 Final: HK0.35 cent 20214 K E | &R0.3551
(2021: 2020 final dividend: (20214 : 2020F K HA R
HKO0.15 cent) per share B 1 0.15%810) 23,728 10,169
2022 Interim: HK0.38 cent 20224F HHA 1 §A%0.387 1L
(2021: interim dividend: (20214 : FHEARG E 1 0.55
HKO0.55 cent) per share BAl) 25,762 37,287
49,490 47,456
The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a final HEC022F12B31HIEFE B g1
dividend of HK0.62 cent (2021: HK0.35 cent) per share KT RER B & R0.628 1L (20214 :
in an aggregate amount of HK$42,033,000 (2021: 0.35%8 1) » 422474 42,033,00078 7T
HK$23,728,000) for the year ended 31 December (20214 : 23,728,000 7T) » HEEEARR
2022 which is subject to approval by the shareholders BIRERNEERRBFAY EHERSA
of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. EE o
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC 12. EREBHN-—EXK
The calculation of the basic earnings per share AR BB ANEESRERABRNTLIRET
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TR E .
following data:
EARNINGS B
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit for the year attributable to st EEREARRF Z KA F
owners of the Company for the B AEEEEZF
purpose of basic earnings per
share 222,125 204,695
NUMBER OF SHARES &8 E
2022 2021
Number of ordinary shares Mt EEREARTIZ
for the purpose of basic ZEKEE
earnings per share 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129
No diluted earnings per share in both years was HRMEFEFETHREZETETEHIE S
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary o A mEFERLRZ7]SKRES
shares in issue during both years. ‘R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ao 13 S 5 ¥R AR PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

138

13. W) I RHKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Building improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEME HA-RER
g7 HEIR #fa HE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TER TEr TER
CoST B
At 1 January 2021 20211818 1,800,000 331,046 124,718 1,346 2,257,110
Additions "E - 27,069 7,081 - 34,150
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (27,343) (3,730) - (31,073)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 587 615 7 1,209
At 31 December 2021 *20215F12531H 1,800,000 331,359 128,684 1,353 2,261,396
Additions RE - 20,725 10,747 - 31,472
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (80,313) (4,191) - (84,504)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (3,052) (1,740) (19) (4,811)
At 31 December 2022 *20226F12531H 1,800,000 268,719 133,500 1,334 2,203,553
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ B:HRERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 20211818 189,208 266,852 82,231 923 539,214
Provided for the year FREME 92,081 22,159 14,323 222 128,785
Impairment loss recognised in RERRDZHESE
profit or loss - 6,729 - - 6,729
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /S - (26,607) (3,093) - (29,700)
Exchange realignment ERAE - 337 301 7 645
At 31 December 2021 *20215F12531H 281,289 269,470 93,762 1,152 645,673
Provided for the year FRER 92,081 20,520 14,327 177 127,105
Impairment loss recognised in RERRDZHESE
profit or loss - 129 - - 129
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /S - (78,505) (3,922) - (82,427)
Exchange realignment ERHEE - (2,083) (1,255) (19) (3,337)
At 31 December 2022 *20226F12531H 373,370 209,551 102,912 1,310 687,143
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2022 *20226F12531H 1,426,630 59,168 30,588 24 1,516,410
At 31 December 2021 *2021F12531H 1,518,711 61,889 34,922 201 1,615,723
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

— continued

The items of property, plant and equipment above,
after taking into account the residual value, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 16.7% — 33.3%

Furniture, fixtures and 9% - 33.3%
equipment

Motor vehicles 18% - 20%

Building is located in Hong Kong.

Due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the number
of visitor arrivals dampened which led to certain shops
in Hong Kong and Macau not performing as expected,
the management of the Group concluded there was
an indicator for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant
shops. The Group estimates the recoverable amount
of these shops, each represents an individual CGU,
to which the asset belongs when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, certain shops
with impairment indicators have been impaired in full
as the remaining lease term of these shops are to end
in less than one year from the end of the reporting
period and hence would not generate a net cash
inflow in the future, accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$129,000 and HK$500,000 (2021: HK$6,729,000
and HK$7,939,000) has been recognised against the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets respectively in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

A o3 B 5 R B

YIE A ekt —

et hFGREER LR E HBRR
BEBUBEREREZ TIFXITE !

EF RFHAR
THEMENRNESITE 16.7%—33.3%

B EKERRKRHE 9%—33.3%

RE 18%—20%
BFEANRESB

BN EREEBENREES T ABRLD
BYREBRRMAETESHNKRREARNE
B AEREERBFHGEH BFKRER
HEAEFHZME HERREBZ T KREE
BURERAEEERXHERCETRE
Pfh e MEZEBMAS T WEIEEE A&
EEGF RS EREEMBCREELE
(A B qEl

ReErEBNZAIWEERETREERE
BFfHEEE-

BEBEFEER AN B RESRNETE
HHOF AN ERBRES —FRE
W ZEEHCEREORE BB RK
BAELERESRAFEE WEE202246F12
531E|thﬁr“ MEEBREEURE
AEEESNNEREIREERERS
$8129,0003 75 % 500,000 7T (20214 :
6,729,0007% 7T K2 7,939,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12B31HIEFEE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14, ERAEEE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$’'000
TFAT
As at 31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
Carrying amount IRmEE 274,495
As at 31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Carrying amount IREE 207,527
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE2022F12831ALLFE
Depreciation charge mEER 226,731
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) BB AERE (FsE13) 500
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE2021F12831ALFE
Depreciation charge mEER 266,166
Impairment losses recognised (note 13) BB RERE (sE13) 7,939

Addition to right-of-use assets resulting from new lease
entered or renewed amounted to HK$307,866,000
(2021: HK$117,362,000).

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and
office for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 to 5 years, but may have
extension and termination options as described below.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. As at 31 December 2022, the
potential exposures to these future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities for extension options in
which the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
was HK$16,946,000 (2021: Nil).
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ERF -BRERE NIRBEZERRKILE
EER-HEFRRDREEBERETH
BRkEBRBETERRIFMG - REE
HA KRG HERBNRER K&
BB & B E & E B AR B WY
HAf

rEEREBEAETHEZLERER
e ZEEERANNEEAERKER
BzEBEEREERETERRC-ERER
AT ZIEREEE -

AEBRREERRBRTHREEENS
B ETEEREZERE - 1L20225F12831
B> AEBXRESGERTIFERERER
2HEBRITARMAZSRRKRBELR
2B 716,946,000 7T (20214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

A o3 B 5 R B

B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued 14, [FREESE-—#&
Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease TEEH o HEEEETHENRIESR
payments or contain variable lease payment that are AEBEENH ENERBEREEZET
based on certain percentage sales and minimum BOLBEEERRBFEREN I
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease BRRAERETHRESENSTERHAL
term. The payment terms are common in retail shops BoFRUESESZNERNERYEEES
in the PRC where the Group operates. The overall BHEHEEETSNHEEMAE -
financial effect of using variable payment terms is that
higher rental costs are incurred by shops with higher
sales.
Variable lease payments during the year ended B ZE2022FE12HA31HIEEEMNT &
31 December 2022 was HK$50,331,000 (2021: BMIEA50,331,00087T (20214 ¢
HK$51,104,000). In addition, expenses relating to 51,104,000587T) o tLoh > A EMESR
rented premises include expenses relating to variable e (BRATEHENREH M
lease payments and rental expenses for contracts TREFHZAEMEEFEEENEER
which the landlords have the substantive right to BHENzHEHE) 258,815,0008 T
substitute the rented premises were HK$58,815,000 (20214 : 60,691,000 70) ° H E2022
(2021: HK$60,691,000). Total cash outflow for leases F1I2BMHIEFEABEZRe R HEREE
during the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to 300,967,000 7T (20214 : 332,653,000
HK$300,967,000 (2021: HK$332,653,000). BT °
15. INVENTORIES 15. F#§8
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Raw materials FEAA R 23,932 26,375
Goods held for resale FEFEER @ 2,679,486 2,684,382
2,703,418 2,710,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao 1 S A5 AR B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HE2022F12A31HIEEE

16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. BUWFIB L+ KA FHIE
PREPAYMENTS
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FABT
Trade receivables from contracts REZR &GN E 57 EWEIE
with customers 52,393 54,589
Less: Allowance for credit losses i : = S EEEEE (538) (585)
51,855 54,004
Other receivables, deposits and  EHMEWRIE & R FET
prepayments B 74,188 96,531
Rental deposits HEks 78,758 85,765
PRC Value-added Tax (“VAT”) R AT W el E R (Mg ER)
recoverable 9,981 15,691
214,782 251,991
Analysed as: baxiir=1»
Current MEN 136,024 166,226
Non-current JERE 78,758 85,765
214,782 251,991

142

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivable from contracts
with customers amounted to HK$63,830,000.

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit
cards with the settlement from the corresponding
banks or other financial institutions within seven days.
The credit term of receivables from retail sales in
department stores are normally ranged between 15 to
45 days.

Included in other receivables, deposits and
prepayments as at 31 December 2022 were
advance payments to suppliers of HK$7,442,000
(2021: HK$13,814,000) and rebate receivables
of HK$30,493,000 (2021: HK$37,297,000). The
remaining items are individually insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B E2022F 12831 HIEEE

16.

RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS - continued

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
before impairment presented based on the invoice date

16.

DN
A

A 75 R B s

FEWRIE s R AN RIE &

BUR 7 BUERT B 5 FE W RUIR T R AR 12
RO (B ARBARERARER 2

at the end of the reporting period, which approximated 5z BRER D AT ©
the respective revenue recognition dates.

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET AT
Within 30 days 30HA 50,995 51,939
31 — 60 days 31E60H 519 1,222
61 — 90 days 61ZE90H 189 200
Over 90 days #BiE90H 690 1,228
52,393 54,589

Included in the trade receivables balance were
receivables from department stores with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$511,000 (2021: HK$636,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 28.

BoERREBEEGRTEERAEES
511,0007% 7t (20214 : 636,000 7T) =
EWEERABRE RERBH 25X
HEA mMASEETEELBRERIEE

o

B 5 KR E M WRRIE 2 R BT G 2 5 15

BRI 5E28 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for o B 55 3R B 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
B ZE20225 12831 ALEEE
17. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL 17. FEH A=A UL EL
MATURTIY OVER THREE MONTHS AND ERRBERIBEEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at 31 December 2022, time deposits of R2022F128318 REIHABEA =AM
HK$198,200,000 (2021: Nil) with original maturity over LB EEETERR198,200,0007 7T (20214 :
three months that carried interest at prevailing interest T) > BIBITERNZE2.50%E3.00% (2021
rate which ranged from 2.50% to 3.00% (2021: Nil) per F BB -HFRERBESEEYRT
annum. Remaining cash and cash equivalents carried BEF]F0.01%Z%E3.50% (20214 1 0.01%
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to Z£3.50%) st E e
3.50% (2021: 0.01% to 3.50%) per annum.
Time deposits with original maturity over three TWIEMNBEBERB ZINEEGRIEZRE
months and cash and cash equivalents that are HEA=ZEBEULNERERARE R
not denominated in the functional currencies of the FEBYHUWT .
respective group entities are as follow:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
HK$ BT 242 10
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) P 5T (HGEPITT) 36,400 42,352
United States dollars (“USD”) =7 (MEmx)) 699 158
Renminbi (“RMB’) AR (TARE)) 215,450 162,568
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. BFIBEBRESTER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
Trade payables B S ENRIA 51,362 51,394
Other payables and accrued HiENRIERESE R
charges 107,115 96,776
Singapore Goods and Services  FINFE R EIRFEEMRE
Tax payables 1,018 1,909
PRC VAT payables R B FE (T 1B E R 10 58
159,505 150,137

Included in other payables and accrued charges
as at 31 December 2022 were accrued bonus and

incentive of HK$17,511,000 (2021:

HK$16,605,000)

and accrued commission of HK$8,521,000 (2021:

HK$7,845,000).

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited 32 2ES % EH R AT
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R2022F 128310 Bt EA KR
17,511,000 70 (20214 : 16,605,000
7T) K FEEHA 8,521,000 7T (20214 :
7,845,000/ 7t) Est AEMEN RIBRIE
SHER
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B E2022F 12831 HIEEE
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. BN REBEKEAER &
— continued

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based B EMRERERARZEZEARZET

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period ZEREDWT
are as follows:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAET
Within 30 days 30HA 44,215 48,716
31-60 days 31ZE60H 2,393 2,442
61-90 days 61E90H 4,452 29
Over 90 days #BiE90H 302 207
51,362 51,394

The Group normally receives credit terms granted by

creditors of 30 to 60 days.

Trade payables that are not denominated in the

AEE-—REBEARTZEEHR/I0E

60H °

WIFNEEBRBREZNEEEAEZES

functional currencies of the respective group entities EARIBWT
are as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
MOP HPITT 2,183 9,262
uS